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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF
THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher investment risk may be attached than
other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such
companies and should make the decision to investors only after due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to
high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a
liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no responsibility for the contents
of this report, makes no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any

loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of China Health Group Inc. (formerly known as Venturepharm Laboratories
Limited)(the “Company”) collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for
the purpose of giving information with regard to China Health Group Inc. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquires,
confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief: (1) the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all
material respects and not misleading or deceptive; (2) there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement
in this report herein or this announcement misleading; and (3) all opinions expressed in this report have been arrived at after due and
careful consideration and are found on bases and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders:

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), I am pleased to
announce the audited results of China Health Group Inc. (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (hereafter collectively referred to as
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2018.

In late 2017, the Company began its journey toward becoming a
leading global provider of digital innovative technology solutions
and contract research services focused on using data and science to
help healthcare clients and the Company directly itself to find better
solutions for their patients.

For long term growth, in 2018, we kick out a Compound partner
sharing model by investing clinical development service to third
party compound development projects in exchanging for future
profit right. Thus our revenue in 2018 is only slightly increased,
while our cost was increased.

Our commitment to patients we will capitalize on our strong
scientific understanding of brain diseases and allergy disease to build
up a leading clinical development and largest real world study on
neurological and allergy diseases and innovative therapies to people
living with psychiatric neurological diseases and anti-allergy around
the world.

The Group now stands at the forefront of the most exciting and
dynamic shift in the history of health industry. With the help of
challenge and opportunity provided by Chinese clinic revolution, the
Group combines strategic thinking with the ability to capture and
analyze complex clinical data to effectively demonstrate real-world
outcomes. Our reach extends to field based teams who connect with
payers on a local level to help communicate the product value story,
the Group offers medical science liaisons, medical marketing
programs bridge the gap between the clinical and commercial phases
of product development, providing expertise across a broad range of
pre- and post-launch opportunities.

With respect to financial operating area, the Group has already been
on the healthy track of profit -making.

In a word, the Group has completed transition from the type of
pharmaceutical technology to new health care model under the new
creative internet architecture. We will grasp the opportunity of the
Chinese health care reform and take advantage of a dozen years’
experience to create physical and spiritual welfare for the patients,
staff and shareholders.

By order of the Board
William Xia GUO
Chairman

27 May 2019

2018 FEEHE

ANNUAL REPORT
BE—_F—/\E+-A=1+—HILEE
For the year ended 31 December 2018

Lz Ghliv

AR EFG (LTHEM “EHHE” ) H5MicHG (LT
iR “awl” ) MHFAR (LTS 7 ) B
T+ T H = HIRF R R

TR AR, AN EI BRI R IRE S T AR R
WP ZANE R S IR B PR A v, SRR S A R
ERRL B SR OR R B P NI W LR HEE HR S RO IR
UES

MEBRNNE, —F—/E, BRI s
T TR A B S, DMRIBUR AR R RE 7% 1 4
HEEGER AR R, A —F— /R
EMEATIIAN, B A A BIAT 8 o

FRA S S (R - A BAMT S 1 3t A R
LNEPNE 35t N < v (7S i) )7 R4 9 MR NV EED)
LS A R ACRR B PO AT SRR, AT AR
G RS b R A BT B

AR BUAE IE SR 7 o SE MR S BB AL, A A
WIRTHY, 7E P B BRSO A AR M DR BRGSO HE B T, i
/INKELHS B S LR A1 01 20 AT A Bl R SR P RE D 68 i
A6, DR RN B I A AR . FRAM A SE 75 45 iR
) BB 3 S 5 B LARE B A 2 (A ) B 00 T B
, X BPRER LS S, IR B W R 5 o B R 11 Bl
PRANTE S B B2 I A 2200, SR T2 9 _E Al Al _E i
Y EESERN -

SAETIIE, o~ W A N B (R R E

Mz, AGEE CARURSE T iR LT BB T 2
T R 23T B R AR s X Y Y RSB S
B BRSO RS, I AR RARER, R R
, BTLAR B A& E AR S &

ZEFGERIR

William Xia GUO

B8
—F-NFERLH R

TEEREEERQLAAI



2018 ERE o+
ANNUAL REPORT BB EE

BE—F—/\&E+-A=+—HIEE FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
For the year ended 31 December 2018

Year ended 31 December

weEt+ _H=1+—HILFEE

2018 2017
—&— )4 i
RMB’000 RMB’000
NRRTTG ARAET S

Results ES
Revenue W ss
Profit for the year EP R

Assets and Liabilities ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%
Total Assets Mg 68,793 32,733
Total Liabilities Ak 39,605 26,929

Shareholders’ equity & E 29,188 5,804

. The Group recorded consolidated turnover of approximately CHECE ST H S HIREE AR ) ARG %
RMBS59,606,000 for the year ended 31 December 2018, which represents 1R 2N K 2 N HE59,606,00000, 18 —F—LHEREYZE
approximately 1.9% increase from approximately RMB58,491,000 for SN H B N RS 58,491,00070_EFF#71.9%
the year ended 31 December 2017.

. The Group recorded profit before taxation of approximately L A R AR B SRS SR A BRI 2 ) 2 N R 27,668,0000T 11T

RMB27,668,000 for the year ended 31 December 2018, as compared AR R BRI RE 2K 7 A R 33,898,0007T -
with profit before taxation of approximately RMB33,898,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

. The Group recorded operating cash inflow before tax paid of L ANAE AR T 815 BB M B R A BHE3,008,0007T, 111
approximately RMB3,008,000 this Year, as compared with operating TR AR AR M B A A K G 14,394,000 7T 6

cash inflow of approximately RMB 14,394,000 in year 2017.

. The basic and diluted earnings per share is RMB2.33 cents in 2018, while CE R ERREA S NRE 23310, R —LE R
basic and diluted earnings per share was RMB3.07 cents in year 2017. % N PEHE3. 07111

4 CHINA HEALTH GROUP INC.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

RESULTS

The Group recorded revenue of approximately RMB59,606,000
for this Year, which represents approximately 1.9% increases
from approximately RMB58,491,000 in the corresponding
period last year. Among them, post-marketing research and
are about RMB42,363,000,
accounting for 71.07% of total revenue; contractual clinical

academic extension services
research services are about RMB6,186,000, accounting for
10.38% of total revenue; drug technology transfer services are
about RMB 10,377,000, accounting for 17.41% of total revenue;
(a) clinical research is one of the four growth driving platforms
that the Group strives to build. The research-based promotion of
terminal clinical medicine, i.e. post-marketing research and
academic promotion services, has been widely recognized by the
market; the contribution of revenue accounted for 71.07%; (b)
the Group's traditional business contract clinical research
services also increased considerably in this Year, with the
contribution of revenue accounting for 10.38%, an increase of
135% over last year; (c) the income of technology transfer
services also increased substantially over last year. Income
contribution accounted for 17.41%, an increase of 120% over last

year.

The Group recorded profit before taxation of approximately
RMB27,668,000, for the year of 31 December 2018, as
compared with profit before taxation of approximately
RMB33,898,000 in the corresponding period last year. Net profit
in 2018 was approximately RMB23,164,000, and in 2017 was
approximately RMB30,454,000. This Year's earnings are mainly
due to the income of launch market research, medical and

medical market services (PMS).

Total consolidated administrative expenses and staff costs were
approximately RMB24,778,000 representing an increase of
approximately RMB2,217,000 compared with approximately
RMB22,561,000 of the corresponding period last year.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND GEARING
RATIO

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s current assets exceeded its
current liabilities and its total assets exceeded its total liabilities
by approximately RMB25,887,000 (2017: net current assets of
approximately RMB3,053,000) and approximately
RMB29,188,000 (2017: net assets of approximately
RMB5,804,000) respectively.
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Meanwhile, considering the working capital and long term fund
demand for future development, the Group will consider to raise
further funds through bank loans, issuance of new shares,
convertible notes, and issuance of new debts, etc.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE
During the year, the Group's transactions were substantially

denominated in Renminbi ("RMB").
currency risk of the Group is limited. Currently, the Group has

As such, the foreign
not adopted any financial instrument for hedging purposes.
BUSINESS REVIEW

Aiming at long-term development, the Group keeps pursuing its
business strategy of transforming from a leading technology
transfer supplier to a health care service group under the internet
architecture.

The Group now stands at the forefront of the most exciting and
dynamic shift in the history of health industry.

The five clinical research methods and means of the Group are as
follows:

1. RWS, RWD, RWE (Real world study, Real world data, Real
world evidence), Obtain real-world data and real-world evidence
through real-world study;

2. PMS (post market surveillance), Drug alert research;

3. MMS (medical marketing services), Medical market, using
clinical specialty to carry out market activities;

4. MSS (Medical Science services), Medical science services
such as medical conference scientific research activities; and

5. CRS (Contract Clinical Research), Traditional pre-market
clinical research services.

PROSPECTS

We are looking forward to the approval of the continuing related
party transactions after 2019, which will have a significant
positive impact on the Group's revenue and profits.

With the change of business model of Chinese pharmaceutical
enterprises, China Heath Group has assumed the responsibility of
replacing traditional CSO model with CRO and CSO model
combination. The Group has continuously invested in enhancing
its market promotion ability and expanding its market network. It
has launched a value-added business model in the local market,
focusing on treatment products in the whole value chain, with
China Health Group and its sub-brands XiEnWanquan, Baimin
Wanquan, Jianshou Wanquan and Yuejie Yan.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Board will also review and assess of potential project or
investment according to reliable principles, in order to improve
the Group business performance and return to shareholders.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

Save as disclose in this report, there was no significant
investment during this Year.

CAPITAL COMMITMENT

As of 31 December 2018, the Group did not have any significant
capital commitment. Details of capital commitments of the Group

are set out in the note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

During the financial year under review, the Group did not carry
out any material acquisitions and disposals in respect of
subsidiaries and associates.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2018, the total banking facilities available to
the Group amounted to RMB1.5 million (2017: Nil), of which
RMBI1.5 million had been utilised and secured by personal
guarantee. The details are set out in the note 19 to the
consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group did not charge on
any of its assets.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group did not have any
significant contingent liabilities.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the financial year under review, there had been no
changes in the Company’s capital (including ordinary shares and
capital reserve) structure. As at 31 December 2018, the issued
shares amounted to about 992,772,000.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There was no significant disclosable event after the reporting period.

HUMAN RESOURCES

The Group’s remuneration policy is basically determined by the
performance of individual employees. In addition to salaries and
bonuses, The Group also provided various other benefits to its
employees. Employee benefits included medical and pension

contributions and share options schemes.
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The Group monitored closely the remuneration and fringe
benefits of the employees and rewarded employees in accordance
with the Group’s business performance. In addition, training and
development opportunities for the employees were also provided
by the Group.

DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during this
Year.

REVIEW OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Company has established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) with written terms of reference in compliance with
the GEM Listing Rules. The primary duties of the audit
committee are (a) to review the Group’s annual reports, interim
reports and quarterly reports (b) to discuss and review with the
audit of the Company on the scope and findings of the audit; and
(c) to supervise the financial reporting process, risk management
and internal control systems of the Group and provide advice and
comments to the Board.

The Audit Committee has three members comprising the three
Independent Non-executive Directors, Mr. Rui QIU, Mr. Mark
Gavin LOTTER and Binhui NI. The chairman of the Audit
Committee is Mr. Rui QIU who possesses extensive experience
in finance and accounting.

The Audit Committee has reviewed and approved the
consolidated financial statements for this Year, including the
accounting principles and new and revised accounting standards
adopted by the Group, and discussed matters relating to auditing,
internal controls and financial reporting.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

During the year ended 31 December 2018, except for the
continuing connected transactions (Details of which are
disclosed in the company’s circular dated 31 July 2017 in
www.hkexnews.com) entered into between the Group and
related companies, at which a director of the Company, Mr.
William Xia GUO, has significant interests in these companies,
no other contracts of significance to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2018, none of the Directors or the substantial
shareholders of the Company and their respective associates (as
defined in the GEM Listing Rules) had any interest in a business
that competes or may compete with the business of the Group.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

During the Year, staff cost, including directors’ remuneration is
approximately RMB16,246,000 (2017: approximately
RMB17,373,000). The Group remunerates its employees based
on their performance, and the prevailing market price. Other
employee benefits include mandatory provident fund, insurance
and medical coverage, training programs and share option
scheme.

The Company adopted the Share Option Schemes where share
options to subscribe for shares of the Company have been
granted to the eligible participants of the Group. 18,850,800
share options have been owned by the eligible participants under
the Scheme for the year ended 31 December 2018.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. William Xia GUO, aged 54, is the Chairman, executive
Director of the Group. Mr. GUO is responsible for strategic
planning and development, overall management of the Group.
Mr. GUO obtained with a Master degree in science from
University of Toronto in March 1997. Mr. GUO has also
completed various approved courses for the degree of Master of
Business Administration in Heriot-Watt University and the
Judge institute EMBA in University of Cambridge. Before
establishing the Group in December 1998, Mr. GUO had worked
for two pharmaceutical companies in Canada, namely
Ortho-McNeil Inc. under Johnson & Johnson and Novopharm
Limited under Teva Pharmaceutical Industries Ltd as research
scientist and process development manager, respectively. Mr.
GUO used to be the director and CEO of Common Wealth
Technology Inc listed on NSDAQ and vice president of
All-China Federation of Industry and Commerce Medical
Pharmaceutical Chamber, he also got National model worker
title and The National May 1 Labour Medal, and was prized as
2005 Excellent creative enterpriser’ in 2005 by BCCC (got the
scholarship for EMBA study in University of Cambridge).

Dr. Maria Xue Mei SONG, aged 51, is an executive Director. Dr.
SONG is responsible for Clinical Research. Dr. SONG graduated
from China Concord Medical University with a Doctorate degree
in clinical medicine in July 1995. She is also a Registered
Pharmacist in the PRC. Prior to joining the Group in February
2000, Dr. SONG had served as general manager of Beijing
Tiancifu Biopharmaceutical Co. Ltd.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Michael SU, aged 47, has been appointed as a non-executive
Director since 18 May 2016. Mr. SU formerly worked for Fila
China Limited, Shanghai Group Limited,
Venturepharm Pharmaceuticals (Hainan)Limited, China Health
Group Inc. etc. and engaged as finance director and similar

Pharmceutic

positons. He held bachelor degree of Hydrolic Engineering from
Tsinghua University and Master Degree of Business
Management from Shanghai Jiaotong University. He has near 20
years of experience in financial management and more than 10
years of experience in pharmaceutic industry.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Rui QIU, aged 43, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director and the chairman of the audit committee
since 12 February 2018. Mr. QIU graduated from Peking
University and holds bachelor degree of Economics. With 20
years of working experience in accounting and financial
management and Merge & Acquisition. Mr. QIU formerly
worked for PwC and TPG, etc, and founded several investment
funds as the key member. Mr. QIU is the founding partner of
BDStar Capital and the directors of his invested companies. Mr.
QIU is the CFA and the CPA.
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Dr. Bing Hui NI, aged 59, has been appointed as the independent
non-executive Director and the chairman of nomination
committee, as well as one of the members of audit committee and
remuneration committee since 31 March 2015. Dr. NI acts as
Vice President in Sanofi, and head of external Science &
Partnering-Asia Pacific. Dr. Ni holds a PhD in molecular
pharmacology from University of Toronto under fellowship and
post-doctoral fellowship in Clinical Pharmacology from National
Institute of Health. Dr. NI has over 40 publications in journals
including Science, PNAS and served as adjunct professors in
several universities in USA and Singapore. Dr. NI has over 20
years of healthcare industry experience in the US and
Asia/China. He served in senior scientific and managerial
positions for several top Fortune 500 companies, including Eli
Lilly (being Action Group Chair, US), S'BIO (being Vice
President/ head of Biology, Singapore,) and Covance China
(being General Manager, China)

Mr. Mark Gavin LOTTER, aged 56, has been appointed as the
independent non-executive Director and the chairman of
remuneration committee, as well as one of the members of audit
committee and nomination committee since 17 February 2015.
Mr. LOTTER holds a Bachelor of Science in Pharmacy, and
Master in Business Leadership of University of South Africa
degrees and has over twenty five years of work experience
largely in the pharmaceutical industry. He started his career in
South Africa and where he has held senior management positions
which included Chief Executive Officer of Astra
Pharmaceuticals (South Africa) and Chief Executive Officer of
Aspen Healthcare (South Africa). He has more than 10 years’
experience in China where he held a number of senior positions
including Vice President of Commercial Operations of
AstraZeneca China, Founder and Chief Executive Officer of
Nova Med Pharmaceuticals and Chief Executive Officer
SciClone - China Operations.

Mr. Ling ZHEN, aged 53, has been appointed as the independent
non-executive Director. Mr. ZHEN is as global Senior Vice
President of Quintiles and the General Manager of R&D in
Greater China where he oversees the overall service offering and
strategic growth in the region. Mr. ZHEN joined legacy
Quintiles in 2007 in the US, and in 2009, he moved to China to
take on the role as the General Manager of legacy Quintiles in
Greater China region including China, Hong Kong and Taiwan.
Prior to Quintiles, Mr. ZHEN served as a management consultant
in the Life Science Group of Ernst & Young Management
Consulting in the US. Mr. ZHEN received his Bachelor of
Science degree from the University of Science and Technology
of China and his MBA degree from the Kelley School of
Business in Indiana University at Bloomington. He also holds a
Juris Doctor (JD) degree from the Law School of North Carolina
Central University and is a licensed attorney in the state of North
Carolina in the US.

For the year ended 31 December 2018
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors of the Company present their annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in
note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income on page 39 of the annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017:Nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group and the Company during the year are set out in note 12 to
the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 20
to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVE

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2018, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution comprised of capital reserve and contributed surplus
of approximately RMB34,150,000 (2017:
RMB34,150,000).

approximately

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 86.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE LISTED
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

The Company or its subsidiaries have not purchased, sold or
redeemed any of its listed shares in the current year. Neither the
Company nor its affiliates have redeemed, purchased or
cancelled their redeemable securities
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during this year and up to the date
of this report are:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

3 years from his re-appointment on 30
December 2017

William Xia GUO

Maria Xuemei
SONG

3 years from her re-appointment on 30
December 2017

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Michael SU 3 years from his appointment on 18 May 2016

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Rui QIU 3 years from his appointment on 12
February 2018
Shou Yuan WU Resigned on 12 February 2018
Mark Gavin LOTTER 3 years from his appointment on 17
February 2015
Bin Hui NI 3 years from his appointment on 31
March 2015
Ling ZHEN 3 years from his appointment on 6

July 2018
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTEREST IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions of the
Company’s Directors and chief executives in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”), which are required
(a) to notify the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they are taken or deemed to have taken under such provision of
the SFO); or (b) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein; or (c) pursuant to Rules 5.46 to
5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules were as follows:

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company

EFEHE
DIRECTORS’ REPORT

ERREETBARRBA ARG X5 s

A

IS
N
s

“FN\FHZA=H, ARRZERREETH
BRAN T M HEBEE CEZR WS BRG] (7
Zr BOREIEGT) ) HXVER) by By s iR
, B () SRR 25 MO B R B S XV R S8 7 M BB 8 7 PR AT
K m REBBEGZHARAR ( TBsCHr) ) 2
RUFAE (AR SRR s o S B Ak S5 SR 1 B
BB 2R BT AT) 5 (o) MRS 73 MU B Ak 91 26
352f6k , BN GG I E R 2 B i A AP B (o) IR
RISERR TR 5. 46 25 6740 PITid < HE i S AT A T

TAAR 2wy B AR BRI 2 I

Number of shares in

Number of shares in which which interested under Total Approximate
interested(other than under physically settled equity number percentage of
Name Type of interests Capacity equity derivatives) derivatives(Note 4) of shares interest(%)
W WS 5t F s 2 B B MBS R et s HERIRER)
CBAAT A= LHERSN) A LR P93 (%)
2B H (Note 4)
William Xia GUO Personal Beneficial owner 112,035,941 10,974,000 123,009,941 12.39
William Xia GUO (VN HEHAN
William Xia GUO Corporate Interests of a controlled
William Xia GUO NA] Corporation (Note 1) 348,068,873 - 348,068,873 35.06
AR (e
William Xia GUO Corporate Interests of a controlled
William Xia GUO o] ~ Corporation (Note 2) 149,432,583 - 149,432,583 15.05
SRR (Fi2)
William Xia GUO Corporate Interests of a controlled
William Xia GUO ARl __ Corporation (Note 3) 91,915,181 - 91,915,181 9.26
AR P RS ()
Maria Xuemei SONG Personal Beng:gcigl owner 924,500 1,636,000 2,272,500 0.26
KEMG fEA gt
Mr. Michael SU Personal Benefi/ciﬁl owner - 220,000 220,000 0.02
z {EUN T h b
S,l:l.(Lu_ Xuan wu Personal Begt?fi/ci%l owner - 100,000 100,000 0.01
BRI {UN P
Mark Gavin LOTTER Personal Benﬁefi/cial owner - 100,000 100,000 0.01
Mark Gavin LOTTER {EUN jEEnt :
Bin Hui NI Personal Beg_efi/cial owner - 100,000 100,000
At ELA HamBaA 0.01
Ling ZHEN Personal Beneficial owner - 100,000 100.000
TidE {[EVN LA g 0.01
Note 1: Winsland Agents Limited is 100% directly held by Mr. William Xia GUO. FffEr: sl Mwinsdand Agents Limited HWilliam Xia GUOSEE BELIEFFA

Note 2: The controlled corporation, Venturepharm Holdings Inc., is 47.63 % directly
held by Mr. William Xia GUO and 49.00 % held by Mr. William Xia GUO
through Winsland Agents Limited, his wholly and beneficially owned company
incorporated in British Virgin Islands.

Note 3:  The controlled corporation, Bright Excel Assets Limited, is 100 % beneficially
owned by Venturepharm Holdings Inc.

Note 4: Various interests of the Directors pursuant to physically settled equity
derivatives are through share options granted.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

The register of substantial shareholders required to be kept under
section 336 of Part XV of the SFO shows that as at 31 December
2018, the Company had been notified of the following substantial
shareholders’ interests and short positions, being 5% or more of

the Company’s issued share capital.
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EX 314

MRS 7 M B IR B S XV AR ER 336k 2 BUE FT i B2 £
RSN, R/ EH A=, AAREN
R LR o s N, RS AR A R A TR S%
L B AR

Approximate

percentage of
Name Capacity Number of shares interess

Py i N

SR G4 e MR BLEIE D
Winsland Agents Limited Note 1) Beneficial owner 348, 068, 873 35.06
Venturepharm Holdings Inc. (Note 2) Beneficial owner 149, 432, 583 15.05
Venturepharm Holdings Inc. (Note 3) Interest of controlled corporation 91, 915, 181 9.26
Bright Excel Assets Limited (Note 3) Beneficial owner 91, 915, 181 9.26
William Xia GUO (Notes 1, 2, 3,4) Beneficial owner and interest of controlled corporations 712,426, 578 71.76
Winsland Agents Limited (f7¥1 ) BafEA A 3348, 068, 873 35.06
Venturepharm Holdings Inc. ( BffFE2) HEamfEAa A 149, 432, 583 15.05
Venturepharm Holdings Inc. ( it 3) S 15 1 2 T RE 2R 91,915, 181 9.26
Bright Excel Assets Limited ( [ff7if3) T A A 91,915, 181 9.26
William Xia GUO (FffE1, 2, 34 ) T AT N NS 4 ) B E 2 712,426, 578 71.76
Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company AN T AR B A 2 17

Note 1: Winsland Agents Limited is 100% directly held by Mr. William Xia GUO.
The shares include 77,500,000 shares granted under the 2014 Convertible
Notes. Noteholder has converted all Convertible Notes to ordinary share of
77,500,000 shares on 31 December 2016.There will be no Convertible
Notes of the Company held by the Noteholder after the Conversion.

Note 2: Venturepharm Holdings Inc. is 47.63% directly held by Mr. William Xia
GUO and 49% held by Mr. William Xia GUO through Winsland Agents
Limited, his wholly and beneficially owned company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands.

Note 3: The controlled corporation, Bright Excel Assets Limited, is 100 %
beneficially owned by Venturepharm Holdings Inc.

Note 4: Apart from shares held through Venturepharm Holdings Inc., and
Winsland Agents Limited, the interests of 10,974,000 shares which are
granted to him under the Share Option Scheme are beneficially owned by
Mr. William Xia GUO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018 there was no
other person who was recorded in the register of the Company as
having interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares
of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which were
required, pursuant to section 336 of Part XV of the SFO, to be

entered in the register referred to therein.

Ff7EL: Winsland Agents Limited HIWilliam Xia GUOZEAE BLFEHRFA 1009 /B HE R HE
AUATHRR 2 T AT R BRI R 1477,500,000/8 0 TA & 734+
~H=+—H, Winsland Agents Limited i 4 7 nl i #6025 R
J1%.77,500,000 8 A FIHEE A AT R AT AL
FIR AT

Fff%E2: Venturepharm Holdings Inc.73 3 FHWilliam Xia GUOJEA: BLFERFF147.63%

JBeRE, AR Hiwilliam Xia GUOSEAE % 1t Winsland Agent Limited (A2

PEHEE LG, Fwillam Xia GUOSBE 2B ERHER) Rk

HE

BiEs:
A3 B Bright Excel Assets Limited 22 HB/B A H Venturepharm Holdings
Inc. B HEA -

BfLa:

FRiZE i Venturepharm Holdings Inc FIWinsland Agents Limited$55 2 & {7
4N, William Xia GUOSEAE FTasfEA1 10,974,000/ frtlies, AR
ST TR F I 210,974,000 847 o
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

During the year ended 31 December 2018, except for the
continuing connected transactions (details of which are disclosed
in the Company’s circular dated 31 July 2017 in
www.hkexnews.com) entered into between the Group and
related companies, at which a Director of the Company, Mr.
William Xia GUO, has significant interests in these companies,
no other contracts of significance to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,

subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
SHARE OPTION SCHEME

As disclosed in note 23, the Company adopted a share option
scheme. It awards the relevant eligible participants for their
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contribution in the Group’s operation. T B TR R i ) JEE 2D R I B s R R M 23 i o
Name or Grant Lapsed/ At 31 Exercise Date of Exercise
category At1 Januay in the Exercised Expired in cancelled December price per grant of period of
Of pla 111(',1KpaILt . AEOI,7 Year in the Year the Year in the year 2018 share(HKS) |share options share options
BRBEH | WU g | oipr | avkeRe | kR |RSTVES | BIRHAT | gy | RO
SO TATH L | e | femm | domesn | AN |@EEKS) | i | AT
N 858,000 - - - - 858.000 0435 | 07-04-09 | 07-04-10%
William 06-04-19
Xia GUO
- _ zs
9,150,000 - - - - 9,150,000 045 30-06-15 3(2) 9029 : gsi
- _ ray
720,000 - - - - 720,000 0435 | 07-04-09 | O704-10%
Other directors 06-04-19
HAthagd 30-06-16%
1,020,000 - - - - 1,020,000 0.45 30-06-15 | 7T s
07-04-10%
Employees and | 2,090,800 - - - 108,000 1,982,300 0.435 07-04-09 06—04—19]
consultants
B MR 30-06-16%
5,940,000 - - - 820,000 5,120,000 045 30-06-15 29-09-25
Total
P 19,778,800 - - - 928,000 18,850,800
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2018, none of the Directors or the substantial
shareholders of the Company and their respective associates (as
defined in the GEM Listing Rules) had any interest in a business

that competes or may compete with the business of the Group.
PERMIITTED INDEMINITY PROVISION

At no time during the year and up to date of this report, there was
or is, any permitted indemnity provision being in force for the
benefit of the directors of the Company (whether made by the
Company or otherwise) or any of its subsidiaries (if made by the

Company).
AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company had, together with the
management and external auditor of the Company, reviewed the
accounting principles and policies adopted by the Group and the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2018.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of its Directors as at the date
of this report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public
float under the GEM Listing Rules.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each Independent Non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation for independence pursuant to
Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Independent
Non-executive Directors have confirmed that they are

independent.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the year, the three largest customers of the Group
accounted for approximately 80.91% of the Group’s sales. The
largest customer accounted for approximately 36.51% of the

sales of the Group.

During the year, the five largest suppliers of the Group accounted
for approximately 42.65% of the Group’s cost of service. The
largest suppliers accounted for approximately 10.28% of the cost

of the service of the Group.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, a number of the connected transactions and
continuing connected transactions between the Company and the
related companies are also disclosed according to the
requirements of chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules. The details
of connected transaction and continuing connected transactions
have been contained in note 24 to the consolidated financial

statements.

The Company has approved the continuing connected
transactions on 14 July 2016 and the EGM on 15 August 2017. It
has come into force since 15 August 2017 for a period of two

years.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company, after
they reviewed the connected transactions shown in note 24(b) to
consolidated financial statements, considered that during the

reporting period, such connected transactions are:

(1) Related to the general and normal business of the Company;

(2) Entered into in accordance with the terms of the general
agreement or in terms of the terms of the agreement between the

Company and the independent third party; and

(3) The terms of the agreement concluded are fair and reasonable

in terms of the owners of the group.

During the Year, the actual amounts of the continuing connected
transactions paid under the agreements did not exceed the
respective aggregate annual cap as previously disclosed in the

circulars and the announcements of the Company.
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The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions for the year ended 31
December 2018 in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagement Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. The Board confirms that the
auditor has issued an unqualified letter confirming the matters in
accordance with Rule 20.54 of the GEM Listing Rules in respect
of the Group’s continuing connected transactions for the year
ended 31 December 2018 as being in order. Copy of this letter
has been provided to the Stock Exchange.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

During the Year, staff cost, including Directors’ remuneration is
approximately RMB16,246,000 (2017: approximately RMB
17,373,000). The Group remunerates its employees based on
their performance, and the prevailing market price. Other
employee benefits include mandatory provident fund, insurance
and medical coverage, training programs and share option

scheme.

The Company adopted the Share Option Schemes where share
options to subscribe for shares of the Company have be granted
to the eligible participants of the Group. 18,850,800 share
options have been owned by the eligible participants under the
Scheme for the year ended 31 December 2018.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on

a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.
MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the business of the Company were entered into by the

Group or existed during the Year.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE ON CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

In the opinion of the Directors, save as disclosed in the Corporate
Governance Report which on pages 21 to 34 of this annual
report, the Company has complied with the code provisions of
the Corporate Governance code as set out in Appendix 15 of the
GEM Listing Rules during the accounting period covered by this

annual report.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
Zhonghui Anda CPA Limited. A resolution will be submitted to
the annual general meeting of the Company to appoint Zhonghui
Anda CPA Limited as auditors of the Company.

Following the resignation of Baker Tilly Hong Kong as auditor
of the Company on 20 December 2018, Zhonghui Anda CPA
Limited was appointed as the auditor of the Company to fill the
vacancy.

On behalf of the Board

Chairman
William Xia GUO

Beijing, the PRC, 27 May 2019
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE ON CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the
principles and the code provisions as set out in the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”) as set out in
Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules. The principles adopted
by the Company emphasis a quality board, transparency and
accountability to shareholders. In the opinion of the Board, the
Company has complied with the Code for the year ended 31
December 2018, with the exception for the following deviations:

Under code provision A.1.3, notice of at least 14 days should be
given of a regular board meeting to give all directors an
opportunity to attend. For all other board meetings, reasonable
notice should be given. However, the Company held 4 regular
board meetings during 2018, one of which was given less than 14
days’ notice to all Directors before the regular board meeting.
Accordingly, the Company has already taken sufficient measures
to comply with the code provision in respect of the notice of at
least 14 days should be given of a regular board meeting to give

all directors an opportunity to attend.

Under code provision A.1.8, the Company should arrange
appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal action against its
directors. However, the Company has not arranged suitable
insurance in respect of the possible legal actions against the
directors to indemnify them from the liabilities that may arise
from their participation in the decision-making process of the
Company in 2018. Accordingly, the Company is in the process of
sourcing suitable insurance fee proposals from difference

insurers.

Under code provision A.2.1, the responsibilities between
chairman and chief executive officer should be separated.
However currently, the Company does not have chief executive
officer. The day-to-day management of the Company's business
is handled by the executive directors, who take the responsibility
to run the Group's business and to implement the Group's
strategy so as to achieve the overall commercial objectives of the
Company.

Under code provision A.2.7, the chairman should at least
annually hold meetings with the independent non-executive
directors without the presence of other directors. However, the
with the
non-executive directors without the presence of other directors

chairman did not hold meetings independent
during 2018. Accordingly, the chairman will hold a meeting with
the independent non-executive directors without the presence of

other directors on 4 June 2019.
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Under code provision A.4.1, non-executive Directors should be
appointed for specific term. There is no specific term of
appointment of the non-executive Directors; however, they are
subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Articles
and the Code. Accordingly, the Company considers that
sufficient measures have been taken to deal with the requirement
in respect of the appointment terms of non-executive Directors as

required under the code provision.

Under the code provision A.6.7 of the Code, independent
non-executive directors and other non-executive directors should
attend general meetings and develop a balanced understanding of
the views of shareholders. In addition, under the code provision
E.1.2 of the Code, the chairman of the board should attend the
annual general meeting and he should also invite the chairmen of
the audit, remuneration, nomination and any other committees
(as appropriate) to attend. The annual general meeting of the
Company (the “AGM?”) held on 25 July 2018, Mr. William Xia
GUO (chairman of the Board), did not attend the said AGM to
answer questions of the shareholders of the Company due to
other prior business engagements. However, Mr. William Xia
GUO has appointed the other attended Director Ms. Maria
Xuemei SONG as his representative at the said meetings to
answer questions of the shareholders of the Company.

RULE 5.05(1) OF THE GEM LISTING RULES

Under Rule 5.05(1) of the GEM Listing Rules, the board of
directors of a listed issuer must include at least three independent
non-executive Directors.

After the appointment of Mr. Mark Gavin LOTTER on 17
February 2015 and Dr Binhui NI on 31 March 2015 as the
independent non-executive Director, the Company has fulfilled
the requirement on the number of independent non-executive
directors of the Company as required under Rule 5.05(1) of the
GEM Listing Rules.

RULE 5.28 OF THE GEM LISTING RULES

Under Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules, every listed issuer
must establish an audit committee comprising non-executive
directors only. The audit committee must comprise a minimum

of 3 members.

After the appointment of Mr. Mark Gavin LOTTER on 17
February 2015 and Dr. Binhui NI on 30 March 2015 as the
member of the audit committee, the Company has fulfilled the
requirement on the number of members of the audit committee as
required under Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company had adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting than the
required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the
GEM Listing Rules. The Company also had made specific
enquiry of all Directors and the Directors confirmed that they
have complied with the required standard of dealings and its code

of conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors during
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the Year.

Audit Committee three members

FHEAT =R E

Rui QIU (Chairman)
s ()

Mark Gavin LOTTER
Mark Gavin LOTTER

Bin Hui NI
{5LHZIEE

Note:

The Board members during the Year and up to the date of this

annual report are:

Executive Directors:

William Xia GUO (re-appointed on 30 December 2017)
Maria Xuemei SONG (re-appointed on 30 December 2017)

The Board
i
Chairman appointed by the Board
HERERATTN
Two Executive Directors
2L AT
One Non-Executive Director

A7 R T

Four Independent Non-Executive Directors

Afr SN AT

Nomination Committee five members

RATBETIAIRA

Bin Hui NI (Chairman)
TR (L)

William Xia GUO
William Xia GUO

Rui QIU (Appointed on 12 February 2018)
s

Mark Gavin LOTTER
Mark Gavin LOTTER

Ling ZHEN (Appointed on 6 July 2018)
s

FiaE -

HITES:

Remuneration Committee five members
= e AL E

Mark Gavin LOTTER (Chairman)
Mark Gavin LOTTER (=Eff)

William Xia GUO
William Xia GUO

Rui QIU (Appointed on 12 February 2018)
Qi

Ling ZHEN (Appointed on 6 July 2018)
LRy

Bin Hui NI
{FUMA e

ENMEEARE B SR ES:

William Xia GUO (A —F—t4E+— H =+ HERIEERIT)
KEM (- F—tF+ A=+ HEREZRT)
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Non-executive Director:
Mr. Michael SU (appointed on the 18 May 2016)
Independent Non-executive Director:

Rui QIU (appointed on 12 February 2018)

Shou Yuan WU (resigned on 12 February 2018)

Mark Gavin LOTTER (re-appointed on 17 February 2018)
Bin Hui NI (re-appointed on 31 March 2018)

Ling ZHEN (appointed on 6 July 2018)

There are no relationships (including financial, business, family
or other material or relevant relationships) among members of the
Board.

The Board of Directors ("Board") of the Company is collectively
responsible for the oversight of the management of the business
and affairs of the Group with the objective of enhancing
shareholders value.

The Board, led by the Chairman, is responsible for the approval
and monitoring of the Group's overall strategies and policies;
approval of annual budgets and business plans; evaluating the
performance of the Group; and oversight of management. One of
the important roles of the Chairman is to provide leadership to the
Board to ensure that the Board acts in the best interests of the
Group. All Directors have been consulted about any matters
With the support of
Executive Directors and the Company Secretary, the Chairman

proposed for inclusion in the agenda.

seeks to ensure that all Directors are properly briefed on issues
arising at Board meetings and receives adequate and reliable
information in a timely manner.

Regular Board meetings of the year are scheduled in advance to
give all Directors an opportunity to attend. Four regular Board
meetings at approximately quarterly intervals have been
scheduled for 2018. The Directors can attend meetings in persons
or through other means of electronic communication in
accordance with the Company's Articles of Association. Board
papers are circulated not less than seven days before the Board
meetings to enable the Directors to make informed decisions on
matters to be raised at the Board meetings.

The Company Secretary shall attend all regular Board meetings to
advise on corporate governance, statutory compliance, accounting
and financial matters when necessary. Directors shall have full
access to information of the Group and are able to obtain
independent professional advice whenever deemed necessary by
the Directors. The Company Secretary assists the Chairman in
establishing the meeting agenda, and each Director may request
inclusion of items in the agenda. Minutes of the board meetings
are kept by the Company Secretary and are open for inspection by
Directors.
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During the twelve months ended 31 December 2018, the Board ~— #% & —/\F+ A =+—HIE+(fH, #HHags
held four meetings. The attendance records of the aforementioned ~ TPURE . iRV E & & HERCe v T
four Board meetings are set out below:
Attendance of individual directors at
board meetings during the year
NG R aR R
Attendance no. Attendance rate
H R KL RHES
Executive Director PTESH
William Xia GUO William Xia GUO 4/4 100%
Maria Xuemei SONG R 4/4 100%
Non-executive Directors JEBITES
Michael SU R 4/4 100%
Independent Non-executive Directors GLHYAE |55
Rui QIU L 4/4 100%
Mark Gavin LOTTER Mark Gavin LOTTER 3/4 75%
Bin Hui NI M 4/4 100%
Ling ZHEN LI 1/2 50%
INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE B e fTEE Y Bk

DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each Independent Non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation for independence pursuant to
Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Independent
Directors have confirmed that

Non-executive they are

independent.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Chairman of the Board is responsible for the leadership and
effective running of the Board, and ensures that all keys and
appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in a timely and

constructive manner.

Currently, the Company does not have Chief Executive Officer.
The day-to-day management of the Company's business is
handled by the executive directors, who take the responsibility to
run the Group's business and to implement the Group's strategy so
as to achieve the overall commercial objectives of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the Code, all directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

All Directors have participated in continuous professional
development during the Year. The Company has also
continuously updated Directors on the latest developments
regarding the GEM Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements, to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness
of good corporate governance practices.

During the Year, the Directors participated in the continuous
professional developments in relation to regulatory update, the
duties and responsibility of the Directors and the business of the
Group in the following manners:
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Attended Seminar

or Briefing/ Read Material
HE T el R/ Bl

Directors

Executive Directors HATESE

William Xia GUO William Xia GUO Vv
Maria Xuemei SONG RENG V
Non-executive Director BT EE

Michael SU [ vV
Independent non-executive directors B e fTESE

Rui QIU Mg Vv
Mark Gavin LOTTER Mark Gavin LOTTER vV
Binhui NI {6 M7 i Vv
Ling ZHEN T 45 Vv
BOARD COMMITTEES EEZEE

The Board has established three committees, namely audit
committee, nomination committee and remuneration committee,
to oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee™) with written terms of reference in compliance with
the GEM Listing Rules 5.28 to 5.33. The primary duties of the
Audit Committee are (a) to review the Group’s annual reports,
interim reports and quarterly reports (b) to discuss and review
with the audit of the Company on the scope and findings of the
audit; and (c) to supervise the financial reporting process, risk
management and internal control systems of the Group and
provide advice and comments to the Board.
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The Audit Committee has three members comprising the three
Independent Non-executive Directors, Mr. Rui QIU, Mr. Mark
Gavin LOTTER and Dr. Binhui NI. The chairman of the Audit
Committee is Mr. Rui QIU who possesses extensive experience in
finance and accounting. The Audit Committee has reviewed the
audited annual results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2018.

During the Year, the Audit Committee held four meetings. The
attendance records of the aforementioned Audit Committee
meetings are set out below:
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FEERZEGB N = AE T AEPAT EE MR ELE . Mark
Gavin LOTTER S&AEFGEMW MM k. ThBLsL s i
BeXF, HlGU WS Les&5E. S%ZAEE
F AR AR 2 S A IR

REIBEEREN, #FE A SR TNk EH®, FREAE
ik B B aSRZ EEAT :

Attendance of member at audit
committee meetings during the year

FENFRZR SR R

Attendance no. Attendance rate

HR AL R
Members BE
Rui QIU RFEIL A =F—)EZ AT HEMD 4/4 100%
Mark Gavin LOTTER Mark Gavin LOTTER 3/4 75%
Binhui NI A 4/4 100%
NOMINATION COMMITTEE REZEE

The Company has established a nomination committee (the
“NC”) with written terms of reference in compliance with the
GEM Listing Rules. The primary duties of the NC are to review
the structure, size and composition by reference to the board
diversity policy (including but not limited to the gender, skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy. The NC is chaired
by an independent non-executive Director. The NC comprises a
majority of independent non-executive Directors. During the
year, the members of the NC are as follows:

Executive Director
William Xia GUO

Independent non-executive directors
Rui QIU

Mark Gavin LOTTER

Binhui NI

During the Year, the NC held one meeting. The attendance
records of the aforementioned NC meeting is set out below:

KA CHOIIRAZER S, WHRGEM BRI
HIHERER , Dl s i@ 2 O, BB (B EA
FOAYERS $iRE MR MAER) Mt E AT B A B
fe R AL B AN R Z AFHS . IRAZAEGERE 4
AT R, AT B R R s R TR
o N, RATATZEENT:

PITES

William Xia GUO

B ERTES
his

Mark Gavin LOTTER
il

JRBAEEN, IRAZEEET TS REAZEEN
B AZ BT e i T

Attendance no. Attendance rate

Members RE B HE AR

Rui QIU LS 1/1 100%
William Xia GUO William Xia GUO 1/1 100%
Mark Gavin LOTTER Mark Gavin LOTTER 1/1 100%
Binhui NI kAl 1/1 100%
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Policy™)
setting out the approach to achieve and maintain diversity on the
Board in order to enhance the effectiveness of the Board and
delegated certain duties under the Policy to the NC. The NC and
the Board had also reviewed on 21 March 2018 the structure of
the Board and is of the opinion the Board consisted of members
with different gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills and knowledge, which
met the requirements under the terms of the Policy.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a remuneration committee (the
“RC”) according to the relevant provisions of the GEM Listing
Rules with written terms of reference. Its primary duties are (a) to
make recommendation to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure for all remuneration of Directors and senior
management; (b) to review and approve the management’s
remuneration proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate
goals and objectives; and (c) to determine the remuneration
packages on senior

individual executive Directors and

management.

The RC is formed by an executive director and three independent
non-executive directors During the Year, the members of the RC
are as follows:

Executive Director
William Xia GUO
Independent non-executive directors

Rui QIU
Mark Gavin LOTTER
Binhui NI

During the Year, meeting was held by the RC to discuss and
review the remuneration policies of the Company, to review and
make recommendations with respect to the remuneration of Board
members for approval by the Board and to made
recommendations with respect to the remuneration of the newly
appointed Directors during the year for approval by the Board.
The RC has adopted the operation model where it performs an
advisory role to the Board, with the Board retaining the final
authority to approve the remuneration packages of individual
executive Directors and senior management.
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Attendance of member at RC meeting during the Year
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HZ B G RA L HMZE B G e

Attendance no Attendance rate

Members RE H R IREL H s

Rui QIU fluin 1/1 100%
William Xia GUO William Xia GUO 1/1 100%
Mark Gavin LOTTER Mark Gavin LOTTER 1/1 100%
Binhui NI i Me 1/1 100%

The remuneration payable to the members of the senior
management by band for the year ended 31 December 2018 is set
out below:

Remuneration bands Number of individuals
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 1

Further particulars relating to Directors’ emoluments and the five
highest paid individuals are set out in note 10 to the consolidated
financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF THEIR
RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the
preparation of the financial statements of the Group and ensure
that the financial statements are prepared in accordance with
statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards. The
Directors also ensure the timely publication of the financial
statements of the Group.

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge,
information and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries,
they are not aware of any matters uncertainly relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

WE R UEF T = HIREE, SR SRE
TR ik B S A BN T

il AL N
2,500,001 7 423,000,000 K¢ 1

T I o S TR /2 37 T e v T P B 22 AR O & O
AR TR 100

EFARMEUBREZRE

IR B B AR W Bk, R B
AT MR S BAE S e A o SRR R AR
S s R A I A

S, A AT, RO PR
BLRCTTFR, 0550125 P 0 S A
BT KB SRR 22
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for ensuring that the Group has a sound
and effective risk management and internal control system. The
Group is committed to the identification, monitoring and
management of risks associated with its business activities and
has implemented a practical and effective control system which
includes a defined management structure with limits of authority,
a sound cash management system and periodic review of the
Group’s operation and performance by the Audit Committee and
the Board. During the year, the Company engaged an external
independent consultant to conduct a review on the internal
control system of the Group. The risk management and internal
control system is reviewed on an ongoing basis by the Board to
ensure it is effective. The Board is satisfied that, based on
information furnished to it and on its own observations, the
present risk management and internal controls system of the
Group are satisfactory. The Board is of the view that the system
of risk management and internal control adopted for this Year is
sound and effective. The Group does not have an internal audit
function and the Board is of the view that there is currently no
need for the Group to have this function.

PROCESS USED TO IDENTIFY, EVALUATE AND
MANAGE SIGNIFICANT RISKS

During the process of risk assessment, the Audit Committee
identifies the risk of the Group and deciding on the risk levels and
the Board shall assess and determine the nature and extent of the
risks that are acceptable to the Group when achieving its strategic
objectives. Taking into consideration the risk response, i.e. the
necessary risk mitigating measures, the relevant departments and
business units shall be assigned to implement the risk
management solutions in accordance with their respective roles
and responsibilities. The identified risk together with the risk
response will be recorded at the risk register and subject to the
Board’s oversight.

MAIN FEATURES OF RISK MANAGEMENT AND
INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS

The key elements of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group include the establishment of a risk register
to keep track of and record identified risks, the assessment and
evaluation of risks, the development and continuous updating of
responsive procedures, and the ongoing testing of internal control
procedures to ensure their effectiveness.
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An ongoing risk assessment approach is adopted by the Group for
identifying and assessing the key inherent risks that affect the
achievement of its objectives. The judgement of the risk is mainly
determined in accordance with the likelihood of occurrence and
consequence of occurrence of the risk, which can be categorised
into 3 classes, classifying the degree of risk impact as: Minor (1),
Moderate (2) and Significant (3), and the probability of
occurrence of risk as: Unlikely (1), Possible (2) and Likely (3).
The risk degrees reflect the level of management’s attention and
risk treatment effort required.

PROCESS USED TO REVIEW THE EFFECTIVENESS OF
THE RISK MANAGEMENT & INTERNAL CONTROL
SYSTEMS AND TO RESOLVE MATERIAL INTERNAL
CONTROL DEFECTS

In view of the Company’s business and scale of operations, and
in order to adopt the most cost-effective method of conducting
periodic reviews of the Group’s internal controls. During the
year, the Company engaged an external independent consultant
to conduct a review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems in accordance with the
requirements under Code Provision C.2 of the CG Code.

The Board and Audit Committee were satisfied that there had
been no major deficiency noted in the areas of the Group’s risk
management and internal controls systems being reviewed after
implementation of recommendations of the internal control
defects reported by the external independent consultant.

PROCEDURES AND INTERNAL CONTROLS FOR THE
HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE
INFORMATION

The Board has established a policy for handling and
dissemination of inside information (the “Inside Information
Policy”). The Inside Information Policy stipulates the obligations
of the Group, restriction on sharing non-public information,
handling of rumours, unintentional selective disclosure,
exemptions and statutory waiver to the disclosure of inside
information, external communication guidelines and compliance
and reporting procedures. Management of the Company takes all
reasonable measures from time to time to ensure that proper
safeguards exist to prevent breach of any disclosure obligations.
Employees are required to promptly bring any possible leakage
or divulgence of inside information to the attention of the Senior
Management, or their delegates, who will notify the Board timely
and accordingly, in which case and in the event that there is
evidence of material violation of the Inside Information Policy,
the Board will decide, or designate appropriate persons to decide
the course of actions for rectifying the problem and avoiding

recurrence.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The responsibility statement of external auditor of the Company,
Zhonghui Anda CPA Limited about their reporting
responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 35
to 38. During the year, auditor’s remuneration for audit services
was approximately RMB680,000. Save as disclosed above, there
was no other non-audit services assignment undertaken by the
external auditor during the Year.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company is responsible for
distributing detailed documents to the Directors prior to the
Board meetings to ensure that the Directors are able to make
informed decisions regarding the matters discussed in the
meetings. And all Directors have access to the advice and
services of the Company Secretary with a view to ensuring that
the Board procedures, and all applicable rules and regulations,
are followed.

During the Year, the Company Secretary is Mr. Leung Kwok Fai
Ben Rich and a written confirmation had been received by the
Company from Mr. Leung to confirm he took not less than 15
hours of relevant professional training during the Year.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communications between the shareholders and the Board. An
annual general meeting of the Company shall be held in each year
and at the place as may be determined by the Board.

SHAREHOLDERS TO CONVENE AN EXTRAORDINARY
GENERAL MEETING

Shareholders may convene an extraordinary general meeting of
the Company according to the provisions as set out in the Articles
and the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. A Special
General Meeting(“SGM”) can be convened by a written request
signed by shareholders of the Company, stating the objects of the
meeting and deposited at the Company’s head office at Unit B,
19/F, Times Media Centre, 133 Wanchai Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong.
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PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS
BY SHAREHOLDERS AT SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING

The procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals at an
AGM or SGM include a written notice of those proposals being
submitted by shareholders, addressed to the Company Secretary
at the Company’s head office at Unit B, 19/F, Times Media
Centre, 133 Wanchai Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The detailed
procedures vary according to whether the proposal constitutes an
ordinary resolution or a special resolution, or whether the
proposal relates to the election of a person other than a Director
of the Company as a director. The procedures for shareholders to
convene and put forward proposals at an AGM or SGM
(including election of a person other than a Director of the
Company as a director) are available on the Company’s website
or on request to the Company Secretary.

PROCEDURES FOR DIRECTING SHAREHOLDERS’
ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders may at any time send their enquires and concerns to
the Board in writing through the Company Secretary at the
Company’s head office at Unit B, 19/F, Times Media Centre, 133
Wanchai Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong or send email to
ir@venturepharm.net..

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the
AGM or SGM.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION
WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company uses a number of formal communications channels
to account to shareholders and investors for the performance of
the Company. These include (i) the publication of quarterly,
interim and annual reports; (ii) the AGM or SGM providing a
forum for shareholders of the Company to raise comments and
exchanging views with the Board; (iii) key information of the
Group available on the website of the Company; (iv) the
Company’s share registrars in Hong Kong serving the
shareholders in respect of all share registration matters; and (v)
corporate information and the Bye-laws of the Company are
made available on the Company’s website.

A Shareholder’s Communication Policy was adopted by the
Board aiming at providing the shareholders and potential
investors with ready and timely access to balanced and
understandable information of the Company.
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The Company aims to provide its shareholders and investors with
high standards of disclosure and financial transparency. The
Board is committed to providing clear, detailed, timely manner
and on a regular basis information of the Group to shareholders
through the publication of quarterly, interim and annual reports
and/or dispatching circular, notices, and other announcements.

The Company keeps on promoting investor relations and
enhancing communication with the existing shareholders and
potential investors. It welcomes suggestions from investors,
stakeholders and the public.

Enquiries to the Board or the Company may be sent by post to the
Company’s head office at Unit B, 19/F, Times Media Centre, 133
Wanchai Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

During 2018, there was no amendment to the constitutional
document of the Company.
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Independent auditor's report

To the shareholders of China Health Group Inc.
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Health Group Inc. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 39 to 85
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2018, the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant

accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2018 and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

Refer to Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements

The Group tested the amount of trade and bills receivables for
impairment. This impairment test is significant to our audit
because the balances of trade and bills receivables of
approximately RMB41,399,000 as at 31 December 2018 are
material to the consolidated financial statements. In addition, the
Group’s impairment test involves application of judgement and
is based on estimates.

Our audit procedures included, among others:

— Assessing the Group’s procedures on granting credit limits

and credit periods to customers;

— Assessing the Group’s relationship and transaction history
with the customers;

— Evaluating the Group’s impairment assessment;

— Assessing ageing of the debts;

— Assessing creditworthiness of the customers;

— Checking subsequent settlements from the customers; and

— Assessing the disclosure of the Group’s exposure to credit
risk in the consolidated financial statements.

We consider that the Group’s impairment test for trade and bills

receivables is supported by the available evidence.
OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information in the
Company’s annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The other
information is expected to be made available to us after the date
of this auditor’s report.
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B RS EE
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we will not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these

consolidated financial statements.
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A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements is located at the HKICPA’s
website at:

http://www.hkicpa.org.hk/en/standards-and-regulations/standar
ds/auditing-assurance/auditre/

This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Fong Tak Ching

Audit Engagement Director

Practising Certificate Number P06353
Hong Kong, 27 May 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
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Revenue
=ELIUN
Cost of services

s B

Other income

FLAM A

Administrative expenses
FrEcE Al

Staff costs

BTA

Profit from operations
B

Finance costs

MHEN

Profit before taxation

BB 1)

Income tax

i

Profit and total comprehensive income for the year

A P ) K A S KA

Profit and total comprehensive income for the year attributable to:

AR ) N A AR S RSB T

- Owners of the Company

A PR RTAH

- Non-controlling interests

AR R

Earnings per share
ERBLEA

- Basic anq diluted
- A S

The notes on pages 44 to 85 form part of these financial statements.

SRA4ZE RS H 2 A U AR MRE A B R 2 — T

2018 2017

S L

Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bk ANRTTI6 ANRATIE
5 59,606 58,491
(7,240) (2,075)

6 143 119
(8,532) (5,188)

(16,246) (17,373)

27,731 33,974

7(a) (63) (76)
7 27,668 33,898
8 4,504) (3,444)
23,164 30,454

23,164 30,454

23,164 30,454

A RHEAL N BHAL

RMB cents RMB cents

11 2.33 3.07

TEEREBEERAFI
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Note 2018 2017
bk R LG et
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARFT7  ARMTT

Non-current assets JEMEEE
Property, plant and equipment W DT Mt 12 3,301 2,751
3,301 2,751
Current assets MEEE
Contract costs AIFE A 14 11,108 2,418
Trade and bills receivables B0 S B i 15 41,399 18,891
Trade deposits paid TSRS 16 800 1,600
Prepayments and other receivables TR A R 17 3,181 815
Cash and cash equivalents Ba MBS EED 9,004 6,258
65,492 29,982
Current liabilities wEaE
Trade payables, other payables and accrued charges  ZH ZIEAFIH, HABEARELENER 18 29,916 23,079
Contract liabilities GlRAR 14 367 382
Bank borrowings SRATE 19 1,500 -
Tax payable TR AR 7,822 3,468
39,605 26,929
Net current assets FEGE 25,887 3,053
Net assets T 29,188 5,804

The notes on pages 44 to 85 form part of these financial statements.

AT S H 2 A IS IR R A Ak 2 —3 )
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Note 2018 2017
e R T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARFT7n  ARMTIC

Capital and reserves JR A R fitiAe 20
Share capital JiE %N 88,673 88,673
Reserves fiti i (59,485) (82,869)
Total equity attributable to equity VYNBSS ik o ] 29,188 5,804
shareholders of the Company
Non-controlling interests |zl 20 - -
Total equity PSR 29,188 5,804
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 May 2019.
HEFGR EJUFTIH B A R
William Xia GUO Maria Xuemei SONG
FRE R A
Director Director
HH e

The notes on pages 44 to 85 form part of these financial statements.
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=
=]
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

s

Attributable to owners of the Company

AT N
Statutory
Share- enterprise Non-
Share Based paynent Special Capital  Statutory  expansion Accumulated controlling
capital reserve Teserve reserve reserve fund losses Total interests Total
A Bmny RS BARE EEAR EEel  RRER At EBelie S Bt
A RS

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARSFE  ARAFo  ARATL  ARGFE  ARGFe  ARGTE  ARGEFL ARGFC  ARGFG  ARGFE
At 1 January 2017 8673 050 6039 6231 1801 6.986 (143,966) (25,166) (25,166)

) 7, | 2 82 ) 8 25, 25,

Ho% kAR ’
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year . . 045
AR A A R A 2 AR 30,454 30454 30,454
Equity settled share-based transactions ~ ~
BERRAE S LA 0 Ao R BERE - 516 516 516
Cancellation/lapsed of share options _ )
Y /SR - (3703) 3,703
Appropriations
B 3337 (3,337)
At 31 December 2017 and at 1 January 2018 N
BT A o H B =% N H 88,673 3,863 6,039 6,231 7,158 6,986 (113,146) 5,804 5,804
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year
AR U AT e Bl Bt
Equity settled share-based transactions N 0
RS BT LU A 2 2R 528 5 - 20 20 220
Lapsed of share options
St - (163) 163
Appropriations
K 2,462 (2,462)
At 31 December 2018 -
B JUE A = —H 88,673 3920 6,039 6,231 9,620 6,986 (92,281) 29,188 29,188

The notes on pages 44 to 85 form part of these financial statements.

SRA4 785 H 2 (I B ORI R AR B i 2 — T
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2018 2017
“F)\E SR
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARFTE ARG
Operating activities RETED
Profit before taxation BAT A1 27,668 33,898
Adjustments for: A
Bank interest income ERATAIE N (45) (3)
Interest expenses FlEZEH 63 76
Equity settled share-based payment expenses DARE R4S BRIty S A 22 220 516
Depreciation res#E A 1,044 1,020
Operating profit before changes in working capital B ASERT HY B SRR 28,950 35,502
Increase in contract costs A TR AR B3 (8,690) (332)
Increase in trade and bills receivables JREVAL B2 B N SR ZE A 1 384 (22,508) (18,340)
Decrease in trade deposits paid JEAHRG . SRR 800 1,500
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments and other receivables TR IE S LAWY (B5n) /s> (2,366) 769
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables, payables AT Gk EATRRAR AT Y
and accrued charges Wamr Qs 6,838 (232)
Decrease in contract liabilities BlFAER > (15) (4,473)
Cash generated from operations RETETE LBl 3,008 14,394
Income tax paid SRS (150) -
Net cash generated from operating activities KRB TEEE A BT R 2,858 14,394
Investing activities BEEH)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment WA RS B (1,594) -
Interest received B S 45 8
Net cash (used in)/generated from investing activities BEES (Frh) /FiSsEz B (1,549) 8
Financing activities REEE)
Interest paid SRR (63) (76)
Addition of bank borrowing WG TR 1,500 -
Repayment of bank borrowing B TREK - (1,500)
Repayment of loans from related companies R BT A TR - (8,321)
Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities RETEE TS (FrR) Z2HETHE 1,437 (9,897)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents Bl MBS EYNEE e 2,746 4,505
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January FHBERBEEFEY 6,258 1,753
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December ERBERBEEEY 9,004 6,258
Note: Bt
Liabilities arising from financing activities include loans from related ~ FR¥E & B2 A= I B S GG BB A R ECRIER I TES/ . BT &

wEEREEH N, BEZF - /EH A= HIEEE
TP TR T A A ) B RN A A

companies and bank borrowing. No reconciliation of liabilities
arising from financing activities as, besides of above cash flow
movements, there are no other changes or movements for those
liabilities during the year ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

The notes on pages 44 to 85 form part of these financial statements.
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1. GENERAL

China Health Group Inc. (the “Company”) was incorporated in the
Cayman Islands on 21 May 2002 as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and
its shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The
address of its registered office is P.O. Box 31119 Grand Pavilion,
Hibiscus Way, 802 West Bay Road, Grand Cayman, KY1-1205,
Cayman Islands and its principal place of business is at Building A2,
Haitong Commercial Centre, No. 11 West Third Ring North Road,
Haidian District, Beijing, the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

In the current year, the Company has adopted all the new and revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") that are relevant to its operations and effective for its
accounting year beginning on 1 January 2018. HKFRSs comprise
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards; Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKAS”); and Interpretations. The adoption of these new
and revised HKFRSs did not result in significant changes to the
Group’s accounting policies, presentation of the Group’s financial
statements and amounts reported for the current year and prior years
except as stated below.

HKEFRS 15 has been applied retrospectively and resulted in changes
in the consolidated amounts reported in the financial statements as
follows:

RMB’000
As 31 December 2017:
Decrease in work-in-progress (2,418)
Increase in contract costs 2,418
Decrease in Receipts in advance (382)

Increase in contract liabilities 382

The Group has not applied the new HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective. The Group has already commenced an
assessment of the impact of these new HKFRSs but is not yet in a
position to state whether these new HKFRSs would have a material
impact on its results of operations and financial position.

44 CHINA HEALTH GROUP INC.
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NOTES 70 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA,
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Growth Enterprise Market of the
Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) and by the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention. The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”), rounded to the
nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated. RMB is the
functional currency of the Company and the Company’s
subsidiaries established in the PRC.

statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain key

The preparation of consolidated financial

assumptions and estimates. It also requires the directors to
exercise its judgements in the process of applying the accounting
policies. The areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to these consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

A summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by the
Group is set out below.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31
December. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. The Group has power over an entity when the Group has
existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential voting
rights as well as potential voting rights held by other parties, to
determine whether it has control. A potential voting right is considered
only if the holder has the practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date
the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results in a
loss of control represents the difference between (i) the fair value
of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any
investment retained in that subsidiary and (ii) the Company’s
share of the net assets of that subsidiary plus any remaining
goodwill relating to that subsidiary and any related accumulated
foreign currency translation reserve.
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Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred.  Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies

adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in subsidiaries not
attributable,
Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated

directly or indirectly, to the Company.
statement of financial position and consolidated statement of
changes in equity within equity. Non-controlling interests are
presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between the non-controlling

shareholders and owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling shareholders even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions (i.e. transactions with owners in their capacity as
owners). The carrying amounts of the controlling and
non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted
and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to the owners of the
Company.

Foreign currency translation

(a)Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group's
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”).

(b)Transactions and balances in each entity's financial
statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional
currency on initial recognition using the exchange rates prevailing
on the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign
currencies are translated at the exchange rates at the end of each
reporting period. Gains and losses resulting from this translation
policy are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair values in foreign
currencies are translated using the exchange rates at the dates when
the fair values are determined.
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When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in other
comprehensive income, any exchange component of that gain or
loss is recognised in other comprehensive income. When a gain or
loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in profit or loss, any
exchange component of that gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss.

(c) Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group entities that
have a functional currency different from the Company’s
presentation currency are translated into the Company’s
presentation currency as follows:

(i)Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position
presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position;

(ii)Income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates
(unless this average is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses are translated at the exchange
rates on the transaction dates); and

(ii))All resulting exchange differences are recognised in the
foreign currency translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign entities and of
borrowings are recognised in the foreign currency translation
When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are recognised in consolidated profit or loss as part of

reserve.
the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a
foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
entity and translated at the closing rate.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress, are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during the
period in which they are incurred.
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Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment, over their estimated useful lives and after taking
into account of their estimated residual value, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment
are as follows:

Leasehold improvements 10 years
Machinery and equipment 5-10 years
Motor vehicles 10 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable
basis among the parts and each part is depreciated separately.

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are
reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of
the relevant asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.

Construction in progress represents buildings under construction and
plant and machinery pending installation, and is stated at cost less any
impairment losses. Depreciation begins when the relevant assets are
available for use.

Operating Leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the Group all the risks and
rewards of ownership of assets are accounted for as operating leases.
Lease payments (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
statement of financial position when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to
receive cash flows from the assets expire; the Group transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets; or
the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the assets but has not retained control on the
assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received
is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in
the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability

derecognised and the consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss.
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Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis
where the purchase or sale of an asset is under a contract whose terms
require delivery of the asset within the timeframe established by the
market concerned, and are initially recognised at fair value, plus
directly attributable transaction costs except in the case of investments
at fair value through profit or loss. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of investments at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets of the Group are classified under the following
categories:

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets (including trade and other receivables) are classified
under this category if they satisfy both of the following conditions:

(a) the assets are held within a business model whose objective is to
hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

(b) the contractual terms of the assets give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less loss allowance for expected credit losses.

Loss allowances for expected credit losses

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on
financial assets at amortised cost. Expected credit losses are the
weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of a default
occurring as the weights.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group measures the loss
allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the
expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over
the expected life of that financial instrument (“life time expected
credit losses”) for trade receivables or if the credit risk on that
financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition.

If, at the end of the reporting period, the credit risk on a financial
instrument (other than trade receivables and contract assets) has not
increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group measures
the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to
the portion of life time expected credit losses that represents the
expected credit losses that result from default events on that financial
instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting
period.
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The amount of expected credit losses or reversal to adjust the loss
allowance at the end of the reporting period to the required amount is
recognised in profit or loss as an impairment gain or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents represent cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits with
banks and other financial institutions, and short-term highly liquid
investments which are readily convertible into known amounts of
cash and subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. Bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an integral part
of the Group’s cash management are also included as a component of
cash and cash equivalents.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according to
the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument under HKFRSs.
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. The
accounting policies adopted for specific financial liabilities and
equity instruments are set out below.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred, and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the reporting period.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a
contract with a customer with reference to the customary business
practices and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
For a contract where the period between the payment by the customer
and the transfer of the promised product or service exceeds one year,
the consideration is adjusted for the effect of a significant financing
component.
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The Group recognises revenue when it satisfies a performance
obligation by transferring control over a product or service to a
customer. Depending on the terms of a contract and the laws that apply
to that contract, a performance obligation can be satisfied over time or
at a point in time. A performance obligation is satisfied over time if:

(a) the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group’s performance;

(b) the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced; or

(c) the Group’s performance does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.

If a performance obligation is satisfied over time, revenue is
recognised by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a
point in time when the customer obtains control of the product or
service.

Other revenue
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.
Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is reasonable assurance
that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to it and that
the grant will be received.

Government grants relating to income are deferred and recognised in
profit or loss over the period to match them with the costs they are
intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to the purchase of assets are recorded as
deferred income and recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Employee benefits

(a) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave and long service leave
as a result of services rendered by employees up to the end of the
reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.
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(b) Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement
schemes which are available to all employees. Contributions to
the schemes by the Group and employees are calculated as a
percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The retirement benefit
scheme cost charged to profit or loss represents contributions
payable by the Group to the funds.

(¢) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of the dates
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits and when the Group recognises restructuring costs and
involves the payment of termination benefits.

Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled and cash-settled share-based
payments to certain employees. Equity-settled share-based payments
are measured at the fair value (excluding the effect of non
market-based vesting conditions) of the equity instruments at the date
of grant. The fair value determined at the grant date of the
equity-settled share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of shares
that will eventually vest and adjusted for the effect of non
market-based vesting conditions.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or
sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets, until such time
as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used for the
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation is determined by applying a capitalisation
rate to the expenditures on that asset. The capitalisation rate is the
weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings
of the Group that are outstanding during the period, other than
borrowings made specifically for the purpose of obtaining a
qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.
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Taxation
Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit or loss because
it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in
other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses or unused
tax credits can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from
the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable

profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates, and
interests in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except
when it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets
and liabilities on a net basis.
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Related parties
A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Group.

(A) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related
to the Group if that person:

(1) has control or joint control over the Group;
(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Company or of a parent of the Company.

(B) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Company are members of the same group
(which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

(ii) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or
an associate or joint venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an entity related to the Group. If
the Group is itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are also
related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (A).

(vii) A person identified in (A)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Company or to
a parent of the Company.

Segment reporting

Operating segments and the amounts of each segment item reported in
the financial statements are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive management
for the purpose of allocating resources and assessing the performance
of the Group’s various lines of business.
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Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of
products and services, the nature of productions processes, the type or
class of customers, the methods used to distribute the products or
provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

The Group operates in a single segment and no segmental analysis is
presented.

Impairment of assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets except receivables to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of any impairment loss. Where it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset or cash-generating unit is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless
the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount
of the asset or cash-generating unit is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined
(net of amortisation or depreciation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset or cash-generating unit in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
increase.
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Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount
when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation arising
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made. Where the time value of money is material, provisions
are stated at the present value of the expenditures expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow is remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional information
about the Group’s position at the end of the reporting period or those
that indicate the going concern assumption is not appropriate are
adjusting events and are reflected in the financial statements. Events
after the reporting period that are not adjusting events are disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements when material.

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
discussed below.

(a) Impairment loss for bad and doubtful debts

The Group makes impairment loss for bad and doubtful debts based
on assessments of the recoverability of the trade and other receivables,
including the current creditworthiness and the past collection history
of each debtor. Impairments arise where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances may not be collectible. The
identification of bad and doubtful debts requires the use of judgement
and estimates. Where the actual result is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value of the trade
and other receivables and doubtful debt expenses in the year in which
such estimate has been changed.
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(b) Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
of the assets exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is determined with reference to the fair value less costs of disposal.
Where the fair value less costs of disposal are less than expected or
there are unfavourable events and change in facts and circumstance
which result in revision of fair value less costs of disposal, a material
impairment loss may arise.

(c) Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

The Group determines the estimated useful lives, residual values and
related depreciation charges for the Group’s property, plant and
equipment. This estimate is based on the historical experience of the
actual useful lives and residual values of property, plant and
equipment of similar nature and functions. The Group will revise the
depreciation charge where useful lives and residual values are
different to those previously estimated, or it will write-off or
write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold.

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker. The
Group is principally engaged in the provisions of clinical research
services, real-world clinical research, medical science liaisons,
medical marketing programs which aims to bridge the gaps between
the clinical and commercial phases of product development in the
PRC and its revenues are all derived in the PRC for both years. These
services are subject to similar business risks and resources and are
allocated based on the view of the whole Group’s benefits in
enhancing the value as a whole rather than on any specific unit. The
Group’s chief operating decision-maker considers that the
performance assessment of the Group should be based on the profit
before taxation of the Group as a whole. Therefore, only one single
segment information are disclosed under the requirements of HKFRS
8.
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The amount of each significant category of revenue is as follows:
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ER( BB NSRBI A 7T

2018 2017
AN —E—LF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANETT 7T ANRTTIE
Provision of post launch market research, FRAL b T 18 B 2 R 42,363 39,273
medical and medical market services BRI BE22E A5 0
(the “PM services”) Be T
Provision of contracted pharmaceutical FRAULG 2S5 5 B IR S 234 5,377
development services
(the “PD services”)
Provision of contracted clinical research LS A EE R 9T IR 6,186 2,632
services (the “CR services”)
Sales of drugs technologies Y TR 10,377 4,717
Sales of patents and trademarks S B BRI A - 4,717
Other medical services Ho At B EE AR IR 446 1,775
59,606 58,491
Other medical services include registration, application and testing HA BRI AL S REM, Has RS o
services.
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers: HL P8 s T A R A 938
2018
—E— )\
RMB’000
LB
Major products/service FEE R
Provision of PM services AL PR R IR BRI BRI AN B M 42,363
Provision of PD services TRALARIZE N FIEE I 234
Provision of CR services PRt O 4R R s 6,186
Sales of drugs technologies B ST 10,377
Other medical services Hofth BRI 446
Total Al 59,606
Timing of revenue recognition e\ R
At a point in time — (R 58,941
Over time —BUREN 665
Total il 59,606
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2017
TR
RMB’000
ANRTT 7T

Major products/service TR /IR
Provision of PM services PRAt TR B RS BRI S BRI R BT S s 39,273
Provision of PD services FRALAHBE T B A IR 5,377
Provision of CR services R HIBE IR 78 B 2,632
Sales of drugs technologies BB 4717
Sales of patents and trademarks S E BRI AR 4,717
Other medical services H A BEBEA BN _ 1775
Total i __ 58491

Timing of revenue recognition W A\ TR B 1

At a point in time — ] e 58,163
Over time — BRI 328
Total &tk 58,491

Provision of PM services, PD services, CR services and other
medical services

The Group provides PM services, PD services, CR services and
other services to the customers. Revenue is recognised when the
relevant services are rendered, no unfulfilled obligation that
could affect the customer’s acceptance of the services rendered
and the respective amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

Some of revenue from PM services is recognised when the
progress towards complete satisfaction of the performance
obligations of a service contract can be measured reasonably,
revenue from the contract and the contract costs are recognised
using the percentage of completion method, measured by
reference to the percentage of contract costs incurred to date to
the estimated total contract costs for the contract. This method
provides the most reliable estimate of the percentage of
completion.

When the progress towards complete satisfaction of the
performance obligations of a service contract cannot be
measured reasonably, revenue is recognised only to the extent of
contract costs incurred that is expected to be recoverable.

The customers pay the contract prices to the Group according to
the payment schedules as stipulated in the contracts. If the
payments exceed the service rendered, a contract liability is
recognised.

Services rendered to customers are normally made with credit
terms of 30 days. Deposits received are recognised as a contract
liability.

R ETRBRBERRE . BIRTT. BEBEAERT
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A receivable is recognised when the services are rendered as this
is the point in time that the consideration is unconditional
because only the passage of time is required before the payment
is due.

Sales of drugs technologies and patents and trademarks

The Group sells drugs technologies, patents and trademarks
derived from its research to customers. Sales are recognised
when control of the products have been transferred, being when
the products are delivered to a customer, there is no unfulfilled
obligation that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the
products and the customer has obtained legal titles to the
products.

Sales to customers are normally made with credit terms of 30
days.

A receivable is recognised when the services are rendered as this
is the point in time that the consideration is unconditional
because only the passage of time is required before the payment
is due.

Revenue from customers of the corresponding years, each
contributing over 10% of total sales of the Group are as follows:

B H TSR & Mt

NOTES 10 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRI R R O R, AR ARG,
FEEMRPERT, N2 AR AR 9] 2 1 A R B — B ] o
JREE VAT B P i O 8 AR B O 20 I 2 0 R 2 o
PR RN AL R T 28 A 2 T s e R A 0 B o

SHERE BN BRI KRR
AERE G E A TOT B R ZE R B, AR RS &
) WE SR R AR MR R R R P 2 AR

, MFEENRESS B P2 iR Bt O R JEA T35, B
BT TR E B P e O RE R IR R R

IF7 % PR AL A AR5 18 5 LA3O KA (5 TR »

WA ) BELAR A A0 I D AT 2 S I ] B i Al 2
FEFERE B ARG IR A B AR FO i A R o

REEBE 2N, RS G A 10%5 L T,
FEAIIT

2018 2017
. A%E mE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR FTIt ARMTt
Provisions of PM, PD and CR services AL iR B RIS ERRTEIT. B8
and sales of patents and trademarks to LA T gﬁﬁf%ﬂﬁf‘%, EHIBE B REIR
Customer A 3{%, EH ﬁ%%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%, k= AT e a ) s
BRI MEEAAE A 18,923 22,828
Provision of PM services to Customer B #2{it_Fii B S 2R H . HIRITT. 54
A TN BTG ISR % B 21,760 24,244
Sales of drugs technologies to Customer C §5& 4% L F 452 P C 7,547 -
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6. OTHER INCOME 6. HABIKA

2018 2017
—E )\ e s tae
RMB’000 RMB’000
N BT NE#EFIT
Bank interest income SRATREWN 45 8
Government grants PR AR B - 29
Others HAth 98 82
143 119

7. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 7. BRBTRTAY

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging:

FRBTRIE A TSR TRR T 71 AR IR

2018 2017
—F )\ —EF L
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARHETIT AR
(a) Finance costs (W BEH
Interests on: LSS
- Bank borrowings - SRATEEK 63 76
(b) Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments as (b) B EERRE R 2 #mE)
disclosed in note 9)
Salaries, bonuses and other benefits 4. TERHAMER 13,388 14,459
Contributions to defined contribution retirement EMpER kg E 2,638 2,398
plans
Equity settled share-based payment expenses TERS BT AR B RREAs B OB (PR [23(0))) 220 516
(note 23(c))
16,246 17,373
(c) Other items (o) HAbTEHH
Auditors’ remuneration (G 600 530
Litigation claims expense PR - L172
Depreciation e 1,044 1,020
Minimum lease payments under operating lease ~ SVEFHEE M - FARHE K
in respect of buildings BB 171 240
Cost of services FEFE AR 7.240 2,075

T EEREREEEFRA A6



2018 FEHR &
ANNUAL REPORT

BE—F—/\&E+-A=1+—HILEE
For the year ended 31 December 2018

8. INCOME TAX

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income represents:

B TSR E Mt

NOTES 710 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8. FreR

(a) A B FHE S M H AR G IR R 2 51 2 B

2018 2017
TE ) R
RMB’000 RMB’000
NRHETIT AN RHETIT

Current tax — PRC Enterprise Income Tax REFRE - TEAERSHR
Provision for the year AATREE 4,504 3444
Over-provision in respect of prior years (G L IHEZ - -
Income tax expense AR H 4,504 3444

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the
Group had no estimated assessable profits for the year ended 31
December 2018 (2017: Nil).

Provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax for the Company and
its subsidiaries is calculated based on the Enterprise Income Tax
Law of the People's Republic of China (“EIT Law of the PRC”).
The Group is subject to a tax rate of 25%. Some subsidiaries of
the Company are eligible for tax incentives due to their location
and industry. These subsidiaries are subject to a preferential tax
rate of 9%.

Taxation of other overseas subsidiaries are charged at the
appropriate current rates of taxation ruling in the relevant
countries.
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(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit at
applicable tax rates:
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(b) LRI B G F -

2018 2017
—F—/\4 Rt
RMB’000 RMB’000
N RHETIT N RHETIC
Profit before taxation BRI 27,668 33,808
Notional tax on profit before taxation, calculated at the Heos0o i FHER AT BRETHITRE R S 2= I
applicable tax rate of 25% 6917 8474
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible Hih Rl Ak R A o AR 365 466
Preferential income tax rates applicable to subsidiaries TN ARl EEr AR (2,110) (2,650)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not recognised AR P R B TR T 2 184 263
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses not recognised B 2 A AR R T (852) (3,109)
Income tax expense RS 4,504 3,444
(c) Deferred tax not recognised: (¢) MAMER 2 TEALFTTEE 7 -
At 31 December 2018, the Group has not recognised deferred tax — FHAAREREAL AR IH A BA < &8 A, FIpik —F—/\

assets in respect of cumulative tax losses and deferred income of
approximately RMB7,918,000 (2017: approximately
RMB9,997,000) and approximately RMB124,000 (2017:
approximately RMB96,000) respectively, as it is not probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the unused tax
losses can be utilised in the relevant tax jurisdiction. The unused tax
losses will expire within five years from the end of the respective
reporting periods.

St H = —H, AR EJ&%W@EEE?&%&ELW/\
IR IEBUIE G FE A N REHE7.918,0000C (& —HAE: 4
N EEH9,997,0000T) M AT EHF124,00000 (—F—E4F: KA
[UH96,0000C) o AE TSRS A 28 S R B HAE N £
.
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9. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS

B TSR E Mt
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Director’s emoluments disclosed pursuant to GEM Listing Rule

and section 383 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance as

follows:

9. EFi&

= HN AR A NG S TR & ARG 28
383 R AN T

Salaries, allowances and

Contributions to
defined contribution

Directors’ fees

s

2018

TE—JGE DA
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMETIC AR¥TIC

benefits in kind retirement plans Share based payments Total
S DR AR Ry O AR it
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017

TEJE CHEEE DR Db TR U TR EE TR TR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTL ARMT . ARBTC AR¥TC ARWTT ARETT  ARWTT AR

Executive directors

PaTER

Mr. William Xia GUO
P

623 - - 102 335 102 958

Dr. Maria Xue Mei SONG
REMHHL

253

295 90 90 6 18 349 403

Non-executive directors
ETESE

Mr. Michael SU
BRRUA

Independent non-executive directors

BrieiTES

Dr. Bin Hui NI
b

Mr. Mark Gavin LOTTER
Mr. Mark Gavin LOTTER

Mr. Rui QIU

(Appointed on 12 February 2018)
st
(=2 \E ]+ HZA)

Dr. Shou Yuan WU
(Resigned on 12 February 2018)

[ v
(= F— )\ A+ HEHE)

253

918 90 90 111 373 454 1,431

There were no arrangements under which a director waived or

agreed to waive any emoluments in respect of the year ended 31
December 2018 (2017: Nil). During the years ended 31
December 2018 and 2017, no emoluments were paid by the

Group to the directors of the Company as an inducement to join

or upon joining the Group, or as compensation for loss of

office.
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10. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 10. fE 3B R M A &
Of the five (2017: five) individuals with the highest AREE A (CF B i) Em AL EREL (
emoluments, one (2017: two) individuals is director whose TE 21'4) W, A T CHUAMIREY, 87 R4
emoluments is disclosed in note 9. The aggregate of the i (ZF—+H4E: 3f0) mEmHATZMEs T
emoluments in respect of the remaining four (2017: three)
individuals are as follows:
2018 2017
— % )\4E ZE LR
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRHTIE ANRHTIC
Salaries, bonuses and other benefits g L& MIHAER] 899 737
Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans FEHABERIR IR K 82 60
Equity settled share-based payment expenses RERR A LUB AR R RS 5y I BH S 4 14
985 811
The emoluments of the four (2017: three) individuals with the T ) \AEN =TGR e A e (—F—

highest emoluments are within the band of HK$Nil to
HK$1,000,000 in both years.

11. EARNINGS PER SHARE
(a) Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit
attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the Company of
approximately RMB23,164,000 (2017: approximately
RMB30,454,000) and the weighted average of approximately
992,772,000 (2017: approximately 992,772,000) ordinary
shares in issue during the year.

(b) Diluted earnings per share

The computation of diluted earnings per share does not assume
the exercise the Company’s share options because the exercise
price of those options was higher than the average market price
for shares for 2018 and 2017.

LA 30L) A AT 2 31,000,000 T4 P9

11 EREF
(a) BB 7

B I A TR 2 G AR AR ) 3 BR A A8 S 15 Tk R 40
N EEH523,164,0007C (2 —L4: £ ARHKE30,454,00070)
FAREAE N 2 BB T IR P48 90992,772,000 (= ZF—1LA4F
:992,772,000) i o

(b) B 21 71

N 2 im L RE R AT AR A =/ EE M LR
ST BN, WA B AR R R SRS AT AL
AR BRI .
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12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12. 903 R Rk
Leasehold Machinery and Motor CQHStrUCtiOH
improvements equipment vehicles ~ In progress Total
ViSebAs . Mias et R fEETE Gt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARKETIT ARKTIT ARWTT ARETIC AR¥KTT

Cost: B
At 1 January 2017, RoF—tiE—H—H s

31 December 2017, —EF—tFEt+-A=1+—H

and 1 January 2018 ZE)NEHH 5,672 18,926 645 - 25,243
Additions i - 126 - 1,468 1,594
Transfers 957 - 1,422 - (1,422) -
At 31 December 2018 AR A=+ 5,672 20,474 645 46 26,837
Accumulated depreciation: EFH7E:
At 1 January 2017 hoE—tiF—H—H 5,655 15,317 500 - 21,472
Charge for the year KA E 7 955 58 - 1,020
At 31 December 2017 RoE—tiE+ A =+—H

and 1 January 2018 K =F—)\F—H—H 5,662 16,272 558 - 22,492
Charge for the year KA E 5 1,020 19 - 1,044
At 31 December 2018 AR A =11 5,667 17,292 577 - 23,536
Carrying amount: FRTETME:
At 31 December 2018 AR A =+—H 5 3,182 68 46 3,301
At 31 December 2017 REF—tFE A= 10 2,654 87 - 2,751
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13. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 13. R A TSR

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries WAL R WA NARZ B ARSI T B
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Wl Frea 2 B A 8 %

Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise

stated.

Proportion of ownership interest

FEAHERE LR
Place of Particulars of Group’s Held by
incorporation issued and paid effective the Held by a Principal
Name of subsidiary and business up capital interest company  subsidiary Activities
WA 1 48 KA e EL BT Rt ASE AN WA LEEH
gEe S SRS i i CIEEEEl
Ventureph: British Virgin Islands -
:nb P arm BVI n“l];VI,,lrgm sanas US5100 100% 100% Investment holding
aboratories s " .
a0 (BVD) ( ) 10057T B aliie a2y
Limited (“VP(BVI)”)
Venovo Pharma USs1 100% 100% - Investment holding
US Inc (“VP(US)”) BVI IES PR
Inactive
VPSCRO Group Inc. US$1 100% 100% _ fEhs
(“VPSCRO”) BVI 12550
Research and development of drugs, natural drugs and synthetic
drugs; technological transfer of and services for the research and
development of biodrugs, natural drugs and synthetic drugs;
P i B pharmacodynamics and clinical research of drugs; PM services
T R 2B The PRC US$200,000 L00% ~ 100% et
R AIRAT S 200.000%7¢
WIS B PR AR R IREE S M il i BFOT PRS2
G R RIRBEN N3 TREE i Z BT S R 4k 4
ST BRI ;b i T SR RS BRI B
BRI AAN BRI s 1 & H4E T B SR
Research and development of drugs, natural drugs and synthetic
drugs; technological transfer of and services for the research and
development of biodrugs, natural drugs and synthetic drugs;
e pharmacodynamics and clinical research of drugs; Provision of
JLnE AR The PRC US$200,000 100% _ 100% PM services and PD services
BB AR A ) i 200.00057C ‘ ‘ - s ‘
ISR BB AR RIREE N M B e BRI R BRI AR
Bt R IREEN A TICEE 2 RN B O S 2 4
BT MG ROETS ; B BRI R BRI B
BT RE T355 R B 5 40 B it B B TR
Research and development of drugs, natural drugs and synthetic
drugs; technological transfer of and services for the research and
Blane S The PRC US$200.000 development of biodrugs, natural drugs and synthetic drugs;
P = o 100% - 100% pharmacodynamics and clinical research of drugs; Provision of
D \- = .
%M'ﬁﬁﬁ&/ L h 200’OOO%JL‘ PM services and PD services
WETE M BB SRR IR B L N, WFTE R B3 A1)
ESENIPS /S STV S STRE L VS R T
BT MG RO S ; i B BRI B RBETE. B
BRI T 358 R 5 0 B 5 DR B I
Research and development of new drug preparations, raw
materials, supplementary materials and biodrugs technological
Jbafi e B 4 aEY) The PRC US$865.000 transfer and services; Provision of PM services and PD services
B I 865,000 7 o - o T
TR “ e BN BHEE 45 . RINEE N R A5 B BRI PR £

Bt R IREEN A FICEE 2 BN B I B 2 4
BT MG ROETS ; B BRI R B R B
BT RE T350 R B 5 40 B8 it B B TR

TEEREBEERAAGT
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Proportion of ownership interest

e R LR
Place of Particulars of Group’s Held by
incorporation issued and paid effective the Held by a Principal
Name of subsidiary and business up capital interest company  subsidiary Activities
) ANEIE= i FEE s SEISOVE A AT Fif a2y TETS
PEES JESEATEN Fi i alfrf
Research and development of drugs, natural drugs and synthetic
drugs; technological transfer of and services for the research and
N development of biodrugs, natural drugs and synthetic drugs;
TN 4 4R The\PRC RMB1,000,000 100% B 100% pharmacodynamics and clinical research of drugs; Provision of
FAPRA R ] A 1,000,000T PM services and PD services
WG M BB G IR  R B L N, WFE R B 3 A1
B fify R IREE N A3 TIEE b 2 AR e s B 2 4
RBETE MG RBE TS ;B BRI R BRI B
B Bt 353 RO B H) B A R IR
Research and development of drugs, natural drugs and synthetic
drugs; technological transfer of and services for the research and
e e S S development of biodrugs, natural drugs and synthetic drugs;
i F R ThP_PRC US$360.000 100% _ 100% pharmacodynamics and clinical research of drugs; Provision of
R ] 360,000 70 PM services and PD services
WG B PR AR A RIRAE N M B s T S PSR
B FANEE T A 2 TR T R 32
TOFT MR, b B SR RS BRI B
SRR R i MR B B N B AR
T 4B The PRC US$600,000 Inactive
s T AR R 600,00037C 1% - S1% A
TGk by 2 B The PRC RMB$1,000,000 Inactive
i i - QA%
BATHIRAR Wi I H1,000,0007 100% 100%  fiEAs
TR R The PRC RMB$2,000,000 Inactive
AR i R #2,000,0007% 100% - 100% AR
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14. CONTRACT COSTS AND LIABILITIES 14. G HERA KA

Disclosures of revenue-related items: e ANAHRATE B 1385 -

As at 31 December 2018 As at 31 December 2017 As at 1 January 2017
U b L
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARHETIT ARHETFIT ARHETIT

Total contract costs 11,108 2,418
KA R piA

Total contract liabilities 367 382
REEEIN=C [

Contract receivables (included in trade receivables) 36,899 18,122
ARG (5 = 5 HEG)

Transaction prices allocated to performance obligations DA TR ARG B AT B3 G, TERHEAELL
unsatisfied at end of year and expected to be recognised as R IT TR EN :

revenue in:

2018 2017

S —E b
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTIT ARMmTIT

- 2018 B AG:S - 361

- 2019 - TR 3318 -

- 2020 L TERTE 133 -
3451

Year ended 31 December B+ H=1—HIEEE

Revenue recognised in the year that was included in FRIRE NG R B R
contract liabilities at beginning of year 382

Significant changes in contract liabilities during the year: RAEES R EEM A R AN E R

2018 Contract liabilities 2017 Contract liabilities

AN S N =N R LA A
RMB’000 RMB’000

ANRHTIT ARMTIT

Increase due to operations in the year
AR 367 83
Transfer of contract liabilities to revenue

PGt TIN (382) (4,556)

TEEREBEERATE9
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A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration in
exchange for products or services that the Group has transferred to a
customer.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
products or services to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer.

Costs to obtain contracts with customers, mainly commissions to
staff and third parties are capitalised as contract costs because the
Group expects to recover these costs. Capitalised contract costs are
amortised to profit or loss when the related revenue is recognised.

15. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLE

BRI TR et
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

) A R B A 5 A 0 ] o s o R S O RE R

& R R fE A SR I 1) 7 B A o OIR 3R, CAER TE
W EUSHE (BT ESR) -

HE FEET A R R, 2R B TR R S, dindE
A Bl L A, R & [ A . ARG & R BOARAE
TR AR B S A IS 2 4R 2

15. EWCIR R I s =

2018
x4
RMB 000
ANREETFIT

2017
TR —AE
RMB 000
ANRHETTT

Trade receivables

I

Bills receivable

B 5 EWCHH

36,899 18,122
4,500 769

41,399 18,891

Included in trade receivables of the Group as at 31 December
2018 is the trade receivable from a related company of
approximately RMB14,817,000 (2017: approximately
RMBS8.,824,000), which is unsecured, interest-free and bears
The related
company is an entity in which a director of the Company, Mr.

normal commercial terms as other trade debtors.

William Xia GUOQO, has significant influence.
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(a) Ageing analysis

The Group normally grants 30 days (2017: 30 days) credit period
to its customers since the invoice date. The bills receivable as at
31 December 2018 are non-interest bearing bank acceptance
bills and are aged within 12 months. The Group seeks to
maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables and
overdue balances are reviewed regularly by management.

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade
and bills receivables, based on the goods delivered or services
rendered date and net of allowances for doubtful debts, is as

2018 F EHME
ANNUAL REPORT

BE—_F—/)\E+-A=1+—HILEE
For the year ended 31 December 2018

(a) HRHR AT

ALEEE R T HE P 0K (ZF L% 30H) HEHY
o MTE—JEFT A= H, IR SRR
SEMESE, ACAREEA T AE A 9o AHE SR RS 2 R
RIS Bk b LR b

T WK B 5 TGO N IR SR 2 ke, 1 R H
KATBRR AR, AT

follows:

2018 2017

=&\ e

RMB’000 RMB’000

PN S T ANRHETIC
Within 30 days 30H 21,337 15,416
31 to 60 days 31%860H 2,524 2,039
61 to 90 days 61290H 2,078 -
91 to 365 days 91%365H 15,391 1,403
Over 365 days iHIE365H 69 33
41,399 18,891

(b) The Group applies the simplified approach under HKFRS 9
to provide for expected credit losses using the lifetime expected
loss provision for all trade receivables. To measure the expected
credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due. The
expected credit losses also incorporate forward looking
information.

(D) AEREIRA] « v B MR SR o8y T RT3k
, MU BT A IR 5 MRS TR IR S el <, SR LTINS
FHL. & T ERTESRS, BICRIIREILE K
R B B (R e 0 K AT 0 Al . IR BHR R (A
TR PE T

Within 30 31 to 365 Over 365
Current days pastdue days pastdue days pastdue  Total
HAr  smsoHn  d@mizie BYE a3t
2365 #5365 H
At 31 December 2018 W\ FZH=1—H
Weighted average expected loss rate I P34 FE 15 2 % 0% 0% 0% 0%
Receivable amount (RMB’000) (PN =L 2T 36,537 - 293 69 36,899
Loss allowance (RMB’000) AR (AN REETIT) - - - - -
At 31 December 2017 fr A —t AT H S —H
Weighted average expected loss rate IR -4 TEIIE 2 0% 0% 0% 0%
Receivable amount (RMB’000) JEUCGIH (N RHETIT) 15,564 2,525 - 33 18,122

Loss allowance (RMB’000) AR N RRTI0)

TEEREEEFERAAT



2018 FEHRE
ANNUAL REPORT

BE—_F—/\E+-A=1+—HILEE
For the year ended 31 December 2018

16. TRADE DEPOSITS PAID

Trade deposits paid represented guarantee deposits paid to
customers in connection with service agreement signed for the
provision of PM services and will be refunded upon satisfaction of
contract terms.

B TS RE T

NOTES 10 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

l6. TEfI B E

TN ST G R BN & P AR L B 2R R
WFFE BRI AN B T 45 s B T 35 5 & ) DR

17. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 17. B BROR HoAth Bk
2018 2017
Note SEoNE L SR LE
Bk RMB’000 RMB’000
NREET T ARHETIC
Prepayments THAS K 2,256 61
Value-added tax recoverable ]I E AR 281 281
Advances to staff for business trips TEAF B T 2R E 440 284
Amounts due from directors JES 5 S 0E (a) 81 68
Other receivables A ISR 123 121
3,181 815

All of the prepayments and other receivables are expected to be
recovered or recognised as expenses within one year.

(a) Amounts due from directors

The amounts due from directors, disclosed pursuant to section

383(1)(d) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, are as follows:

Fie A TR O FEA R

o

T A P AT [ e

(a) MBS RO

IR ARG 3830 R BER I T

Maximum amount

outstanding
31 December 2017 and gﬁgﬁgﬁ
At 31 December 2018 1 January 2018 TR
RZE )\ REF—F+ZA=+—H 2018 2017
+—HA=+—H R-F—N\F—H—H —F )\ ZE
Name of director RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB 000
HH L4 ANRHETIT NI NRHETTT AT
Dr. Maria Xue Mei SONG 81 68 81 68
KEMHA
Mr. Michael SU - - - 28
i o
81 68

The amounts due from directors are non-trade related, unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.
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18. TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND 18 B 5 Rak. HAbREMEREEH
ACCRUED CHARGES

2018 2017
N e SN e S S

ote
e RMB’000 RMB’000
! NN AT
Trade payables B 5 AT F (a) 1,286 43
Litigation claims payables JEAHEAR AR (b) 12,983 13,484
Accrued staff costs, welfare and benefits ~ JEFFE T A, #&FFIAEF] 2,436 3,492
Value-added tax and sundry taxes payable JEA (B F A HAFTIE 3,207 1,913
Others HAb 10,004 4,147

29,916 23,079

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled or 45 % S M HAB JEAF IR IEA 1A P S A ml AR AN
recognised as income within one year or are repayable on
demand.

(a) Ageing analysis (2) JEE T

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade AR5 1 K & 5 A IE 2 FEBA 488 25 H N4 a0
payables, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

2018 2017

=& ) TR

RMB’000 RMB’000

ANRHETIT ANRHETIT
Within 30 days 30HA 1,001 -
31 days to 90 days 31H#e0H 102 -
91 days to 365 days 91 H #365H 140 -
Over 365 days 365K 43 43
1,286 43

(b) Several subsidiaries of the Company are defendants in various  (b) A5 [ A HY 2 52 85 20 w1 R SE 0 RO T o ple o o JEEASH
lawsuits and claims arising in the normal course of business. The 3 F 5 15 2 10048 125 B5e 4 e A R AT st v AR i I 1 o
amounts provided represented the outstanding claims payables to

plaintiffs according to the respective court judgements.

TEEREEBERAATI
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19. BANK BORROWINGS 19. SHTEK
2018 2017
R\ —F -t
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANREETIT ANRETIT
Bank loan SRATE 1,500 -

The loan was unsecured, interest-bearing at the Loan Prime Rate of
Beijing Bank plus 92 points and was guaranteed by a director of the
Company, Dr. Maria Xue Mei SONG. The effective interest rate
during the year ended 31 December 2018 was 5.22% (2017: 5.22%)
per annum and repayable within one year.

20. CAPITAL AND RESERVES
(a) Movements in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of each
component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes in
the Company’s individual components of reserves between the
beginning and the end of the year are set out below:

R CF LT = HZ SR T SO SRR R AAA
FlHEH PR, REMHELAEE AR SR TR
PIFFEIAE R SR AU SR T AR Lo B RS FTA ST
RO R A EE . R — /U =
F—H IR s 08 (CF—EFE A=+
—HIEAFEE : 522JH),

20. B fik s
(a) (I RE SR A Ry A B AR A S B
AR B AR RS A5y 2 JR) M AR Sk 2 (2 S IR R

ERERR R EIRER Y o A FE IR S AR T A0 B A R 2 ]
Z BRI

Share-
Based
Payment Capital ~ Contributed Accumulated
reserve reserve surplus losses Total
R R BN REHEE At
S
RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AT ARMETE ARET T ARMETT  ARWETE
At 1 January 2017 AR —tE-HH 7050 6,139 28011 (156,670) (115470)
Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year AEERR R A A T A - - - (1,862) (1,862)
Equity settled share-based transactions TR A AR 2 s 516 - - 516
Cancellation/lapsed of share options I SRR HE (3,703) - - 3,703
At 31 December 2017 and 1 January 2018 REF—tE A= —H S\ F—H—H 3863 6,139 28011 (154829) (116816)
Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year AEF R A A T A - - - (1,560) (1,560)
Equity settled share-based transactions PR A AR 2 s 220 - - -
Lapsed of share options AT (163) - - 163
At 31 December 2018 RR— A =1 3920 6,139 28011 (156,226) (118,156)
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(b) Issued share capital

For the year ended 31 December 2018

(b) CEATHRA

2018 2017
VAN —F LA
Number of Number of
Shares’000 RMB’O(E) Shares’000 RMB’O(P
&#eooo  ARMETIC wrooo  ARMTIT
Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid: ~ B EEATNAE R K@k
At 1 January and 31 December w—H—HMt+=H=+—H 992,772 88,673 992,772 88,673

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as
declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share
at meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally
with regard to the Company’s residual assets.

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i) Special reserve

The special reserve represents the differences between the
nominal value of the shares of VP (BVI) (a holding company
of the other members of the Group prior to the group
reorganisation) and the nominal value of the Company’s
shares issued pursuant to the group reorganisation.

(ii) Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents the additional contributions
made by the shareholders of the Company and the additional
contributions made by the non-controlling shareholder of the
subsidiary of the Company prior to the listing of the
Company’s shares on The Growth Enterprise Market of the
Stock Exchange. It also includes the premium of the issued
share capital of the Company.

HBBEA AR B IR, IATRER AR
W A SRR A AR A R R
Yy )y T EL R S L

(o) M E R B
() FeHI i
Rt VP(BVI) (AL R FAH A AKE B A R

NE| RN D) AR B M A2 R 5 A G B A 1T
BT ey T (A TR 2 22

(i) B A

EEA AR A A FBORA A A w B AR S B _E TR
PrfEZ BONER, LASCA A FIN 2 w1 BOBORTA 4R
FriERONE S . AR Eih A A w] B 3T BOAS A9
&

T EEREEBBERAATS
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(iii) Statutory reserve and statutory enterprise expansion
fund

Pursuant to the PRC regulations and the Articles of
Association and Board regulations of the subsidiaries of the
Company, each of the subsidiary is required to transfer 10%
of its net profit, as determined under PRC accounting
regulations, to a statutory reserve until the fund aggregates
50% of each of the subsidiary registered capital. The
transfer to this reserve must be made before distribution of
any dividends to shareholders. The statutory reserve shall
only be used to make good of previous years’ losses, to
expand the subsidiary’s production operations or to increase
the capital of the subsidiary. Upon approval by a resolution
at a shareholder’s general meeting, the subsidiary may
transform its statutory reserve into share capital and issue
bonus share to existing shareholders in proportion to their
original shareholdings or to increase the nominal value of
each share currently held by them, provided that the balance
of the reserve fund after such issue is not less than 25% of
the registered capital. Moreover, the subsidiaries of the
Company established in the PRC can transfer certain
percentage of their profit after taxation on voluntary basis, as
determined under the PRC accounting regulations to the

enterprise expansion fund.

(iv) Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus represents the difference between
the net assets of the subsidiaries and the nominal amount of
the Company’s shares issued in exchange thereof pursuant

to the Group Reorganisation.

The Company’ reserves available for distribution to its
shareholders comprise the capital reserve and contributed
surplus. In accordance with the Company’s Articles of
Association, dividends shall be payable out of profits or
other reserves of the Company. Under the Companies Law
of the Cayman Islands, the Company must be able to pay its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business
immediately following the distribution of any dividends.

76 CHINA HEALTH GROUP INC.

(iii) I E AT ML BB RS

MR B HER AN RIR A TSR, A FZEZE T
TRl LR AR A 10% B AL E AT E, HEX
il P < O SRR AR S TA AR 2 R REPE A 50 %0 2 1k
FESEN IR R R 7 RS TR AT E T . 5E
AT FOAT T IRIER AR AR SRR AR A4
FERCE . BUE AN R BA . HRBREHE, AN
AT S E ARG RO, B BOR A A 55
B TALBC TR BOR, B B AR B A 1Y £
WRIAR TR, R TIR, ik E AR IR AR A
DTAREME A R25%. BT, AGERIT A\ RIEAIR
UM AT B B g 2 ] AT 7K LB A 2 A P 47y
HLBE AR E S R

(iv) Bk R

AT 2 BER R I A 7] 2 A R SR FIAR
AR M A B T LM A e 2 B T (B 2 ) 2 2

AR EI AT SR IR il A Al i M B
o MIBANFIIMER, BN BEH A AL Rl
LAt A P T (R BT R o EAL, ARREH 20
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21. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
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21, RREFHERE

Atthe end of the reporting period, the total future minimum lease payments RoF—)FH A=+ —H, AREESEHER N2
under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows: ABREAH G A AR T AN SZAY
2018 2017
=)\ —F b5
RMB’000 RMB’000
NRHETIC PN
Within one year —IEN - 22

The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of buildings held
under operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial
period of one year, with an option to renew when all terms are
renegotiated. Lease payments are usually increased every year to

reflect market rentals. None of the leases includes contingent rentals.

22, RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the PRC,
the subsidiaries of the Company in the PRC participate in defined
contribution retirement schemes (the “Schemes”) organised by
the relevant local authorities whereby the subsidiaries in the PRC
are required to make contributions to the Schemes at rates which
range from 0.4% to 19% (2017: 0.4% to 19%) of the eligible
employee’s salaries during the year. The relevant local
government authorities are responsible for the entire pension

obligations payables to retired employees.

23. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS

The Company has a share option scheme which was adopted on 20
June 2003 whereby the directors of the Company are authorised,
at their discretion, to invite employees of the Group, including
directors of any company within the Group, to take up options at
predetermined considerations to subscribe for shares of the
Company. Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for
one ordinary share in the Company and is settled gross in shares.

(a) The terms and conditions of the share options are as follows:

AL RBRCE E R A 2 2 M SERRTIN . %55l
RIRIGIIR iRy —4F, IAREEIRET, B A iR
W e EE R . AETATR BRIk, DU
ke, MR A S B A

22, BB ARAEFIRHE

AR R B T AT 2 TR R il A A i v Il o o Jeg 4
T2 LR R 55 R e B EGRAETE ( TREEE
), BRI, BB E A B P A E RS E B a
0.4%%19% (& —LF: 04%Z19%) [AFHE1E D
FHBR M55 R A IR R B 23R R T

23 MR (B AT LU R SE 5

Z!—V\TﬁA¥7 TN T H AR RS 9%
, ARATZERER R SR AL R (@Tﬂ‘

%@Eﬁ?&ﬁ’ VR ) AR AR A E

oo FF—IRBRER THA NRBIA A m]— Eﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ’f&é

Tﬁﬂo

() TAGEHR F 2 AR i g BARA T (o S PSR 2 Ak B R A

2018: A )\UF
At 1 January 2018 Lapsed during the year At 31 December 2018
Grant date Exercise price  Note i S AN AR T F— ) \4E
RER 1T BT E—H—H g +—H=+—H

7 April 2009 HK$0.435
—wE A H A M43 541] (i) 3,668,800 (108,000) 3,560,800
30 June 2015 HK$0.45

—E—FAENA A EEasl (iii) 16,110,000 (820,000) 15,290,000
19,778,800 (928,000) 18,850,800
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2017: ZE LA
At1l Cancellation/lapsed At 31 December
Exercise January 2017 during the year 2017
Grant date price Note A E LA TAAAF AL
BEHE LY g i —H—H AR A=A
10 May 2007 HK$0.625
R BEL A 6251 @ 1,950,100 (1,950,100) -
7 April 2009 HK$0.435
ZEFIFMALH Wikas sl G 3,918,800 (250,000) 3,668,800
30 June 2015 HK$0.45
N AV B s HEREas il (iif) 17.300.000 (1,190,000 16,110,000
23,168,900 (3,390,100) 19,778,800
Notes: st
(i) These options were exercisable within the period () ZEMBRETA —EFZLFIATHE=F—14F

commencing from 10 May 2007 to 9 May 2017. The options

were valid and effective until 9 May 2017.

(i) These options were exercisable within the period
commencing from 7 April 2009 to 6 April 2019. The options

EFEHHAIUH KM

(i) ZEREBRRET R FE
FPY H S B A R A A = A

JUEFENMAEHE =%

THILH BRI A N T B . xR i — % —

Ju

OB 7 — %

were valid and effective until 6 April 2019. —JLEEM A S H LR

(iii) These options are exercisable in three trench with the (i) FEEEMEBERETT 7 = AT . B =N H =+
maximum percentage of options exercisable with the periods HE -Z—tLFE A H _+hH. —Z—tLFEANH=F
commencing from 30 June 2016 to 29 June 2017, 30 June AEZF—/\VEAH IR M ZFE—/\NFARH =+

2017 to 29 June 2018 and on 30 June 2018 being 40%, 70%
and 100% respectively. The options are valid and effective

until 29 June 2025.

(b) The number and weighted average exercise prices of share

options that are exercisable are as follows:

I3 He b IR A A w A o
ANHZAILH R

HLEME, H1LA40%- 70% M 100% 2 AT 70 i A
TR A T AR

(b) SR HE 2 e KO3 47 B A T

2018 2017
EE i
Weighted average Number of Weighted average Number of
exercise price HK$ options exercise price HK$ options
TR+ M s 2 i H IR REBORE BE
Fr b v 000’ Fr it 000°
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 0.447 19.778.800 0.462 23.168.900
A — H ARl
Granted during the year B B B B
TAARAE LA HY
Cancellation/lapsed during the year 0.448 (928,000) 0.550 (3,390,100)
AR B
Outstanding at the end ofthe year 0.447 18,850,800 0.447 19,778,800
A = HEARATE
Exercisable at the end of the year 0.447 18,850,800 0.446 14,495,800

WA=t AT AT

The options outstanding as at 31 December 2018 had their exercise
price of HK$0.435 and HK$0.45 (2017: HK$0.435 and HK$0.45)
and a weighted average remaining contractual life of 5.32 years

(2017: 6.28 years).
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(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share options
granted is measured by reference to the fair value of share
options granted. The estimate of the fair value of the share
options granted is measured based on binomial lattice model.
The contractual life of the share option is used as an input into
this model. Expectations of early exercise are incorporated into
the binomial lattice model.

Fair value of share options and assumptions 2015

Fair value at measurement date HK$0.209 - HK$0.288

Share price HK$0.43
Exercise price HKS$0.45
Expected volatility (expressed as 89.29%
weighted average volatility used
in the modelling under Binomial
Lattice model)
Option life (expressed as weighted 10 years
average life used in the modelling
under Binomial Lattice model)
Expected dividends 0%
Risk-free interest rate (based on 1.788%

Exchange Fund Notes)

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility
(calculated based on the weighted average remaining life of the
share options), adjusted for any expected changes to historical
dividends. Changes in the subjective input assumptions could

materially affect the fair value estimate.

This
condition has not been taken into account in the grant date fair

Share options were granted under a service condition.

value measurement of the services received. There were no
market conditions associated with the share option grants.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, equity settled
share-based payment expenses related to services provided by
the directors of the Company and other employees of approximately
RMB182,000 (2017: approximately RMB373,000) and
approximately RMB38,000 (2017: approximately RMB143,000)
respectively were recognised in profit or loss arising from

options vested during the year.
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24. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
AND BALANCES

(a) Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group
wholly related to amounts paid to the Company’s directors, as
disclosed in note 9.

(b) Other related parties transactions

In addition to the financial arrangement dealt with a director of
the Company as mentioned in note 19, the Group entered into

the following material related party transactions during the year:

BRI R et
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24. BB 2 EARAT B R A

() TEEHE N 24

L A E N B B S A AR A R S, 0 EA
AR o

(b) HA B 755 2

F?Bﬁ%fl9FELZ!K/\:J%$J*§EEZEJH%§H?F%, ZNSENES
PIRT Sz LA ER Bl 2 w52 5

2018 2017
—F—)\F —F -t
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥ETIT ANRHETIT
Income for PM services from a HE BRI T . | T 78 e B TR IR %5
related company (Note) PRAFFFE 8 LI 465 R B e T S IR N (Igﬁ #) 21,760 24,244
Note: FFFEE -

A related company is an entity in which a director of the
Company, Mr. William Xia GUO has significant influence.

(c) Details of balances with related parties are disclosed in notes
15 and 17.

25. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES IN RESPECT
OF LITIGATION CLAIMS

As of 31 December 2018, certain subsidiaries of the Group are
defendants in proceedings relating to its customers. Based on the
respective court judgements, management is of the opinion that
the outcome of such proceedings will not exceed the existing
accruals made for such litigation claims as disclosed in note
18(b). Accordingly, there will be no significant impact to the
financial status of the Group.
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26. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, so
that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing access to
finance at a reasonable cost. The Group’s overall strategy

remains unchanged from prior years.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to ensure it is effective and optimises
shareholder returns, taking into consideration the future capital
requirements of the Group prevailing and projected capital

expenditure and projected investment opportunities.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may consider the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, the
return of capital to shareholders, the issue of new shares or
selling assets to reduce debt.

The Group assesses the total equity/deficiency presented on the
face of the consolidated statement of financial position for
capital management purposes.

27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks
arise in the normal course of the Group’s business.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to manage

these risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and
other receivables and cash and cash equivalents. Management
has a credit policy in place and the exposure to these credit risks

are monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, the Group has policies
in place to ensure credit is granted to customers with appropriate
credit history and good reputations through evaluations on
customer past history of making payments when due and have
the ability to pay, and take into account information specific to
the customers as well as pertaining to the economic environment
in which they operate. Trade and bills receivables are due within
30 days (2017: 30 days) from the date of billing. Normally, the
Group does not obtain collateral from customers.
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The Group has a concentration of credit risk on its three largest
customers (2017: two largest customers) and the largest
customer which represent 93% (2017: 98%) and 48% (2017:
72%) of the total trade receivables balance respectively.

The credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited because
the counterparties are authorised financial institutions with
sound credit ratings.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset in the consolidated
statement of financial position after deducting any impairments

or allowances.

The Group considers whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk of financial assets on an ongoing basis
throughout each reporting period by comparing the risk of a
default occurring as at the reporting date with the risk of default
as at the date of initial recognition. It considers available
reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking information.
Especially the following information is used:

— internal credit rating;

— actual or expected significant adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to cause a
significant change to the borrower’s ability to meet its
obligations; and

— significant changes in the expected performance and
behaviour of the borrower, including changes in the payment

status of borrowers.

A significant increase in credit risk is presumed if a debtor is
more than 30 days past due in making a contractual payment. A
default on a financial asset is when the counterparty fails to
make contractual payments within 60 days of when they fall
due.

Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery, such as a debtor failing to engage in a
repayment plan with the Group. The Group normally categorises
a loan or receivable for write off when a debtor fails to make
contractual payments greater than 360 days past due. Where
loans or receivables have been written off, the Group, if
practicable and economical, continues to engage in enforcement

activity to attempt to recover the receivable due.

82 CHINA HEALTH GROUP INC.

REFE = AHERNES (CFH—LE: MamKES) &
B R I BB 6 T 40 A B 5 IR iR B A R AR 1Y)
93%, (ZF—tH4F: 98%) M48% (—FE—LF: 72%) -

AR 2 SRATAE AT A HOR AT R R R AP < A
IR e S T 2 2 (5 R B e

R B BgUR 32 L IR % & A A R 7 & HF I Bk I %
HOHRI(E -

7 R 3 2 R A JE B BT A e A A
JRBRAEAT LU, 2% A A1 ot 3] P Al s 11 i L e
AR FHEHEE RN ERERy AT Y & BN SR ) 4k
Eille JUHRFEA AT B

— PR AE iR

— W RS AR IR I B S E T AR AL T
FHEr S SR NB T BB AR s R TR AR
N E

— AT SE I T R R AR, B R AT G
REHIEAL .

AR A AAE ST & ROR R i i 30K, RIE F JEUBs:
GHEERIN. SR EEA RIS B T AREELHEZ0
KNG FOHo

PR G B AR TR, ARE A SUR RESLA SR BT &
Aot RS B BT E . W A E IR S
360K [ G RN, A ] 208 15 B sl BN 7 e
8o AREHEBROR CRGESY , £ R T RIRG A1 L
~, ASEEREGR SRR, LA R K



BRI TR et

NOTES 70 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Group uses two categories for non-trade loan receivables
which reflect their credit risk and how the loan loss provision is
determined for each of the categories. In calculating the
expected credit loss rates, the Group considers historical loss
rates for each category and adjusts for forward looking data.
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AR I 5 SR S M T R, R
LR L BT s A R 1 S Ml . A3 7R
SRR SRR A B R R,
AR AT MR T

Category Definition Loss provision ol EF RS

Performing Low risk of default and strong capacity to pay 12 month expected losses JEfT EAERRT, AR5 1218 H TR S
Non-performing | Significant increase in credit risk Lifetime expected losses RIEAT {5 R B R R TN R B R
(b) Liquidity risk (b) VE) ¥ R

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible
for their own cash management, including the short term
investment of cash surpluses and the raising of loans to cover
expected cash demands, subject to approval by the Company’s
Board when the borrowings exceed certain predetermined levels
of authority. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its
liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash
and adequate committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and

longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual maturities
at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s non-derivative
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments computed
using contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at
the end of the reporting period) and the earliest date the Group
can be required to pay:

ALEEEREEEMATHAWEF ESEHE, Uiff
JRUHR B 7 BB N BR LA 2 TEUMI BB oK, A i
B THC R Ko, QIZEME R w2 E
AR | 2 B SRR S ) B L Y Y A e R R
ZABDL, AT LR A G B0 A4 T8 AR B < o i MM o 2 P
fRan iRt e 2 F R, DIBMEN LR RE &S

i Bo

NREVIAEER SR A EMA AR T EAPIR, 1
TR SRR BB G (AR AHRE, SR
SR N T 2 FRE R ) DR AERARRER
B 2 A i HIE AT -

Contractual undiscounted cash flows

GRIARIT BB AT

Within 1 year or on demand Carrying amount

—HENEHZER JR T

RMB’000 RMB’000

2018 —F— )4 AT NRHETIT
Trade payables, other payables B WA, HoAth A R0

and accrued charges N JERTE 29,916 29916

Bank borrowings SRITEFX 1,514 1,500
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Contractual undiscounted cash flows

GRS BB S
Within 1 year or on demand Carrying amount
AN R R HRIAIME
RMB’000 RMB’000
2017 —F 4 N RHETIC NRHETIT
Trade payables, other payables AR, HoAth A
and accrued charges M fERTE H 23,079 23,079

(c) Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from bank deposits
and bank borrowing. The bank deposits and borrowings bear
interest at variable rates and expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk and fair value interest rate risk respectively.
The Group’s interest rate profile is monitored by management.

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2018, it is estimated that a general increase/decrease
of 100 basis points in the interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, it would have increased/decreased the Group’s profit
after tax and accumulated losses by approximately RMB65,000
(2017: decreased/increased the Group’s profit after tax and
increased/decreased of accumulated losses by approximately
RMBS53,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming
that changes in interest rates occurred at the end of the reporting
period and had been applied to the exposure to interest rate risk
for financial instruments in existence at that date. The 100 basis
point increase or decrease represents management’s assessment
of a reasonably possible change in interest rates over the period
until the next annual end of reporting period. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2017.

(OFIES:N

A [ 2 ) AR L o 2 A SR T A O B B AR . ARSI
TR SRR IR SR B R R I, A%
V) v S ) 3R R I MR 2 4 e (B (R A 4 I T B

HUEAE T

W oE ) EF T H =4 , hRFISESE LA
—EREEEE, EATA AT E R R R AR IR,
AR B R B R v R D8 K RE SR N R
H65,00070 (F—LAF: BRBIER R0k R
I, WO H N R 53,0007T) o

LA L OGRSV LR 3 S0 EL P 45 A B 2 T
AT, COME PR AL % PB4 072 B A7 A B B T
R AR — B TSR R S T
I F A5 01K ATFD 2 RS 2o TR 2 A S 4%
— LRI T

(d) Categories of financial instruments (d) FIMNRE = F

2018 2017
AN e
RMB’000 RMB’000
NRETTT NRHETTT

Financial assets: SRl E:
Financial assets at amortised cost DI A ARG i s e (884 51,847 27,222

(including cash and cash equivalents) KA S

Financial liabilities: SR

Financial liabilities at amortised cost DAIEAR ARG 4 b (R 31,416 23,079
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(e) Currency risk

The Group is not exposed to significant foreign currency risk as
most of income and expenses are denominated in the functional
currency of the Group.

(f) Fair values

All financial instruments approximate their respective fair
values as at 31 December 2018 and 2017.

28. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
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28. A FIETH KB BORILR

COMPANY

2018 2017
S S
RMB’000 RMB’000
NN AT

Non-current asset B EE
Interests in subsidiaries Bl B8 I s - -

Current assets WEEE
Prepayments and other receivables TEASH KON At LA R 88 88
Cash and cash equivalents Bl NBLEHEY) 2,445 25
2,533 113
Current liabilities bk y=Li=i

Other payables and accruals A AT RN T 5,629 1,886
Amounts due to subsidiaries i B8 > T A IR 26,387 26,370
32,016 28,256
Net current liabilities e R = (29,483) (28,143)
Net liabilities bEi=Li (29.483) (28,143)

Capital and reserves oA B ft
Share capital A 88,673 88,673
Reserves i (118,156) (116,816)
Total deficit iR (29.483) (28.143)
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I FEBERE
FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

RESULTS E S
Year ended 31 December
BETZH = —HIFE
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
TEPE CE A TEARE TF - DR\
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#FIT  AR¥TT AT ARBETIT AREETT
Revenue (eI 5,956 20,497 20,241 58,491 59,606
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRATHT (EH) /i) 44,117 (3,376) 2,085 33,898 27,668
Income tax ik (32) (111) 42 (3.444) (4,504)
(Loss)/profit and total comprehensive — Aw T AAEFE dil MERE i BT 2 AN
income for the year after tax before  {3r(HEFH) i Al M AR A UL RS 44,085 (3,487) 2,127 30,454 23,164
non-controlling interests M
Non-controlling interests ez il e 32 134 - - -
(Loss)/profit and total comprehensive 71 AAEF il PR 5 18 2 A
income for the year after (ESTR) FE ) B &3t B A A VR 44,117 (3,353) 2,127 30,454 23,164
non-controlling interests
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEENAR
As at 31 December
A==k
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
TERE SRR TERNE TR TR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRHTIT ARMETIT ARMETIE  ARWTIT  ARWTT
Total assets less current liabilities A& /2 Yl i Bl £ i (31,055)  (39,668) (25,166) 5,804 29,188
Non-current liabilities | li=Ci
(Convertible notes payable) (FEA AT\ B g ) (6,467) - - - -
Non-controlling interests AR A (134) - - - -
Total (deficit)/equity R EsTR) /R o (37,656)  (39,668) (25,166) 5,804 29,188
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